
BOARD MEETING AGENDA
Monday, April 13, 2015

Regular Meeting - 7:00 P.M.

Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Paul R. Eldredge
General Manager/
District Engineer

David M. O’Hara
Attorney

1. Call to Order.

2. Pledge of Allegiance.
  

3. Roll Call.

Motion 4. Approve Minutes of the Meeting of March 23, 2015. 

5. Written Communications.  

6. Oral Communications.
The public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received 
at the Union Sanitary District office at least one working day prior to the meeting).  This portion of the agenda is where a member of the public may 
address and ask questions of the Board relating to any matter within the Board’s jurisdiction that is not on the agenda.  If the subject relates to an agenda 
item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individuals, with a maximum 
of 30 minutes per subject.  Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion.

Motion 7. Approve Increase to Pay Range of Wastewater Operations Coach (to be reviewed by 
the Personnel Committee).

Motion 8. Approve Publicly Available Pay Schedule (to be reviewed by the Personnel 
Committee).

Motion 9. Award the Construction Contract for the Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer 
Replacement Project – Phase 2 to Ranger Pipelines, Inc. (to be reviewed by the 
Construction Committee).

Motion 10. Authorize the General Manager to Execute Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 3 
with Carollo Engineers for Providing Engineering Services during Construction of the 
Cogeneration Project (to be reviewed by the Construction Committee).

Motion 11. Schedule a Public Hearing to Adopt Ordinance No. 36.03, Sewer Use Ordinance (to 
be reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee).

Page 1 of 97



Motion 12. Approve a Change Order to the Agreement with Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. 
for the Sewer Service Charge Cost of Service Study (to be reviewed by the Budget & 
Finance Committee).

Motion 13. Resolution No. ____, Make Responsible Agency Findings Pursuant to the California 
Environmental Quality Act for the City of Newark Dumbarton Transit-Oriented 
Development Specific Plan Area, and Approve Abandonment of the Force Mains 
Within the Wetlands Parcel for the Development (to be reviewed by the 
Legal/Community Affairs Committee).

Information  14.    Information Items:
a. Check Register.
b. Cogeneration Project Construction Contract Change Order Summary (to be 

reviewed by the Construction Committee). 
c. Earth Day 2015 (to be reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee). 
d. Discuss Topics for the General Manager Check-in Workshop Scheduled for         

April 30, 2015.

Information  15. Committee Meeting Reports. (No Board action is taken at Committee meetings):  
a. Legal/Community Affairs Committee – scheduled for Wednesday, April 8, 2015, 

at 4:30 p.m.
b. Construction Committee – scheduled for Thursday, April 9, 2015, at 8:45 a.m.
c. Budget & Finance Committee – scheduled for Thursday, April 9, 2015, at 4:30 p.m.
d. Personnel Committee – scheduled for Friday, April 10, 2015, at 9:30 a.m.

Information  16.  General Manager’s Report. (Information on recent issues of interest to the Board).

Information       17. Other Business:
a. Comments and questions. Directors can share information relating to District 

business and are welcome to request information from staff.
b. Scheduling matters for future consideration.  

18. Adjournment – The Board will adjourn to the District Counsel Interviews Closed 
Session on Tuesday, April 21, 2015, at 1:00 p.m.

19. Adjournment – The Board will then adjourn to the Main Budget Workshop in the 
Boardroom on Thursday, April 23, 2015, at 6:30 p.m.

20. Adjournment – The Board will then adjourn to the next Regular Meeting in the 
Boardroom on Monday, April 27, 2015, at 7:00 p.m.

The Public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received at the 
Union Sanitary District at least one working day prior to the meeting).

If the subject relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  If the subject is within the Board’s jurisdiction but not 
on the agenda, the speaker will be heard at the time “Oral Communications” is calendared.  Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum 
of 30 minutes per subject.  Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion of the agenda item.

The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the meeting should contact the General Manager’s 
office at (510) 477-7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND

Page 2 of 97



NOTICE OF       All meetings will be held in 
COMMITTEE MEETING     the General Manager’s Office 

BOARD MEETING OF APRIL 13, 2015 

Committee Membership: 
Budget and Finance Directors Anjali Lathi and Tom Handley (Alt. – Pat Kite) 
Construction Committee Directors Pat Kite and Jennifer Toy (Alt. – Manny Fernandez) 
Legal/Community Affairs Directors Pat Kite and Tom Handley (Alt. –Anjali Lathi) 
Legislative Committee Directors Manny Fernandez and Jennifer Toy (Alt–Tom Handley) 
Personnel Committee Directors Manny Fernandez and Anjali Lathi (Alt. – Jennifer Toy) 
Audit Committee Directors Manny Fernandez and Tom Handley (Alt. Jennifer Toy) 

Legal/Community Affairs Committee, Wednesday, April 8, 2015, at 4:30 p.m. 

11. Schedule a Public Hearing to Adopt Ordinance No. 36.03, Sewer Use Ordinance. 

13. Resolution No. ____, Make Responsible Agency Findings Pursuant to the California 
Environmental Quality Act for the City of Newark Dumbarton Transit-Oriented Development 
Specific Plan Area, and Approve Abandonment of the Force Mains Within the Wetlands Parcel 
for the Development. 

14c. Earth Day 2015. 

Construction Committee, Thursday, April 9, 2015, at 8:45 a.m. 

9. Award the Construction Contract for the Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer Replacement Project 
– Phase 2 to Ranger Pipelines, Inc. 

10. Authorize the General Manager to Execute Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 3 with Carollo 
Engineers for Providing Engineering Services during Construction of the Cogeneration Project. 

14b. Cogeneration Project Construction Contract Change Order Summary. 

Budget & Finance Committee, Thursday, April 9, 2015, at 4:30 p.m. 

12. Approve a Change Order to the Agreement with Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. for the 
Sewer Service Charge Cost of Service Study. 

Personnel Committee Friday, April 10, 2015, at 9:30 a.m. 

7. Approve Increase to Pay Range of Wastewater Operations Coach. 

8. Approve Publicly Available Pay Schedule. 

Committee meetings may include teleconference participation by one or more Directors. 
(Gov. Code Section 11123) 

Committee Meetings are open to the public. Only written comments will be considered. No action will be taken.
Page 3 of 97



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

March 23, 2015

CALL TO ORDER

President Fernandez called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL

PRESENT: Manny Fernandez, President 
  Jennifer Toy, Vice President  
  Tom Handley, Secretary
  Pat Kite, Director
  
ABSENT: Anjali Lathi, Director

STAFF: Paul Eldredge, General Manager
  Dave O’Hara, District Counsel
  Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager 
  James Schofield, Collection Services Manager  
  Kathy Destafney, Business Services Coach
  Regina McEvoy, Assistant to the GM/Board Secretary

GUEST: Alice Johnson, League of Women Voters

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF MARCH 9, 2015

It was moved by Director Kite, seconded by Vice President Toy, to Approve the Minutes of the 
Board of Director’s Meeting held March 9, 2015.  Motion carried with the following vote:

AYES: Fernandez, Handley, Kite, Toy
NOES: None
ABSENT: Lathi
ABSTAIN: None

MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT FOR FEBRUARY 2015

General Manager Eldredge reported the following:
A new format for the monthly operations report was used. 
Odor Complaints:  One odor complaint was received in February from Fremont.  District 
staff investigated the complaint, and no odor was found.  The findings were relayed to 
the reporting party.
Safety:  One new injury was reported in February.  The employee had been 
experiencing wrist pain for approximately 1 ½ years, and has been diagnosed with 
Carpal Tunnel syndrome.  The District received guidance from the CDC for workers 
handling untreated sewage from individuals with EBOLA.  The USD Bloodborne 

Page 4 of 97



Pathogen control plan was updated to include the most current information and training 
is being planned for impacted employees.
Personnel:  Rich Czapkay was promoted to Collection Services Coach.
The Hours and Leave report has been altered to the totals for each workgroup in 
addition to the totals for all District employees.

Business Services Coach Destafney reported the following on behalf of Business Services: 
The District recently purchased three vehicles, including two Chevy Volts. 
Expenditures by work group are at or under budget. 

General Manager Eldredge and Technical Services Manager Ghossain reported the following 
on behalf of Technical Services: 

The new format for the Technical Services Monthly Operations report includes a table 
of trouble calls received from each of the three cities we serve. 
The number of permits issued over the past three months are listed by type. 
The Environmental Compliance report listed a total of 26 urban runoff enforcements and 
16 FOG enforcements.  
Environmental Compliance staff have recently been focusing on industrial users, which 
has led to an increase in the discovery of unpermitted connections. 

General Manager Eldredge stated the Treatment & Disposal monthly operations report now 
includes a Cogen power production chart and a chart showing lab results and effluent flow.

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS

There were no written communications.

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS

Alice Johnson from the League of Women Voters of Fremont, Newark, and Union City spoke 
regarding Sunshine Week.  Ms. Johnson stated the purpose of Sunshine Week is to promote 
open government and access to public information.  Ms. Johnson stated the League works to 
hold government officials accountable once they are in office.  Ms. Johnson presented a report 
stating the League finds the District to be a transparent agency, which is attached.

RESOLUTION NO. ____, ACCEPT CONSTRUCTION OF PRIMARY DIGESTER NO. 5
REHABILITATION PROJECT FROM D.W. NICHOLSON CORPORATION AND 
AUTHORIZE THE ATTORNEY FOR THE DISTRICT TO RECORD A NOTICE OF 
COMPLETION

General Manager Eldredge stated the contractor, D.W. Nicholson Corporation, submitted a 
last minute time extension request for the Project.  After the Committee Notice was posted, it 
was determined the item could not be considered for acceptance at this time. 

ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2754, APPROVE EXCEPTION TO THE 180-DAY WAIT PERIOD 
FOR POST-RETIREMENT EMPLOYMENT FOR ANDY MORRISON

This item was reviewed by the Personnel Committee. Collection Services Manager Schofield
stated he had less than three weeks to be mentored by the retiring Collection Services 
Manager, Andy Morrison, in December 2014.  Retirement law allows an agency to waive the 

Page 5 of 97



180-day wait period that typically elapses prior to a retired annuitant returning to temporary 
employment for the purpose of performing a special project/assignment.  

It was moved by Director Kite, seconded by Vice President Toy, to Adopt Resolution No. 2754,
Approving Exception to the 180-Day Wait Period for Post-Retirement Employment for Andy 
Morrison.  Motion carried with the following vote:
  

AYES: Fernandez, Handley, Kite, Toy
NOES: None
ABSENT: Lathi
ABSTAIN: None

INFORMATION ITEMS:

Check Register
All questions were answered to the Board’s satisfaction.

Co-Digestion Pilot

General Manager Eldredge stated the District’s Cogeneration engines have been running on 
a mixture of 75% biogas and 25% natural gas.  The District is spending approximately $20,000 
on natural gas each month. If the District can generate more biogas, less natural gas would 
need to be purchased to keep the engines running.  The Co-Digestion Pilot program will utilize 
free organic material that will be transported to the plant for digestion and generate additional
biogas. The District will explore the benefits over a period of 3-4 months.  It is anticipated this 
free feedstock will be able to generate 5 – 10% more biogas.  This would enable the District to
purchase less natural gas, and result in an estimated monthly savings of $7,500 - $15,000.  
President Fernandez asked if there would be any potential harmful effects.  General Manager 
Eldredge stated the process would not be harmful.  Secretary Handley requested a tour of the 
process when appropriate.    

COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS:

The Construction, Personnel, and Budget & Finance Committees met. 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT:

General Manager Eldredge stated the District hired Koff and Associates executive 
recruiters to assist in filling the Business Services Manager, Business Services Coach, 
and Human Resources Administrator positions.
Recruitment for Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction Coach recently closed, and 
applications are under review.
District staff will meet with Alameda County Water District staff to discuss reclaimed 
water.
PG&E completed the inspection associated with the Cogeneration Grant on March 13, 
2015.  District staff worked diligently to meet all grant requirements, and expect to 
receive the final results in April.    
The Cogeneration Ribbon Cutting will be held from 2:00 – 4:00 p.m. on Thursday, 
March 26, 2015.

Page 6 of 97



OTHER BUSINESS:
Director Kite inquired about the USD Video.  General Manager Eldredge stated the video would 
be presented to the Board in early summer of this year.

ADJOURNMENT:

The meeting was adjourned at 7:38 p.m. to the next Regular Board Meeting in the Boardroom 
on Monday, April 13, 2015, at 7:00 p.m.  

SUBMITTED:     ATTEST:

_________________________   __________________________
REGINA McEVOY     TOM HANDLEY
SECRETARY TO THE BOARD   SECRETARY

APPROVED:

__________________________
MANNY FERNANDEZ
PRESIDENT

Adopted this 13th day of April, 2015

Page 7 of 97



Page 8 of 97



Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy
  
Officers
Paul R. Eldredge
General Manager/
District Engineer
  
David M. O’Hara
Attorney

DATE: April 6, 2015

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer
Armando Lopez, Treatment & Disposal Services Manager
Judi Berzon, Human Resources Administrator

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 7 - Meeting of April 13, 2015
Approval of Increase to Pay Range for Wastewater Operations 
Coach

Recommendation

Approve the recommended increase to both the pay range and night shift differential for 
the Wastewater Operations Coach that was presented by Armando Lopez, Treatment & 
Disposal Services Manager at the March 17, 2015 Board Workshop. 

Background

Following the December 2014 recruitment for Wastewater Operations Coach (Night) it 
was determined by Treatment & Disposal Service (T&D) Management and the 
Executive Team that it would be in the District’s best interests to conduct a second 
recruitment.  

Discussions with several potential internal candidates who did not apply for the vacant 
Night Coach position during the initial recruitment indicated that the salary range and 
work schedule of the Night Wastewater Operations Coach adversely affects the 
District’s  ability to attract the highest quality candidates. 

A job audit and salary survey for the Wastewater Operations Coach was conducted that
showed that the salary range was 9% below the market average.

In addition, the Night Wastewater Operations Coach currently receives a flat rate shift 
differential of approximately 4.4%, compared to the 12% differential earned by the 

Page 9 of 97



District’s Night Shift Plant Operators.  Night Shift Plant Operators are also eligible to 
earn overtime, which is not applicable for the exempt Coach position.  This fact creates 
the additional compensation issue that an Operator on the Night Shift who works 
overtime can conceivably receive more pay than his/her Coach (see table below).  
  

Classification Annual Salary
Night Shift Plant Operator (with 
12% shift differential)

$98,165 - $119,320
** does not include 

overtime

Night Shift Wastewater 
Operations Coach (with 4.4% 
shift differential) 

$110,330 - $144,807 after 
September 2014 salary 
range adjustment of 4% 

Recommendation

Increase the Wastewater Operations Coach pay range to meet current market 
conditions (approximately 9% above last year’s salary survey) and increase the night 
shift differential to 5% of salary as indicated in the table below. The requested 
increases will bring the pay range for the Wastewater Operations Coach classification in
line with other similar agencies, thereby making the position more attractive to qualified 
applicants. 

Proposed Annual Pay 
Range

Wastewater Operations Coach $110,683 - $145, 272

Wastewater Operations Coach 
Night Shift Differential

5% ($5534  - $7,263)

Page 10 of 97



Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy
  
Officers
Paul R. Eldredge
General Manager/
District Engineer
  
David M. O’Hara
Attorney

DATE:  April 6, 2015 

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer
  Rich Cortes, Business Services Work Group Manager
  Judi Berzon, Human Resources Administrator

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 8 - Meeting of April 13, 2015
APPROVE THE PUBLICLY AVAILABLE PAY SCHEDULE

Recommendation:  The President, USD Board of Directors, sign the April 13, 2015 
Pay Schedule which will be posted and retained in accordance with CalPERS 
requirements.  

Background: 

The Publicly Available Pay Schedule, mandated by CalPERS in August 2011, is 
designed to: 1) ensure consistency between CalPERS employers; and, 2) enhance the 
disclosure and transparency of public employee compensation.

The “Publicly Available Pay Schedule” (CCR 570.5) must:

be duly approved and adopted by the employer’s governing body in accordance 
with requirements of applicable public meetings laws;
identify the position title for every employee position;
show the pay rate for each identified position as a single amount or as multiple 
amounts within a range;
indicate the time base (i.e., bi-weekly, monthly, etc.);
be posted at the office of the employer or immediately accessible and available 
for public review from the employer during normal business hours or posted on 
the employer’s internet website;
indicate an effective date and date of any revisions;

Page 11 of 97



be retained by the employer and available for public inspection for not less than 
5 years;

The salary changes contained in this document reflect:

 the adjustment for the March 1, 2015 negotiated Classified employee salary 
increases; and

the adjustment to the Wastewater Operations (TPO) Coach’s salary based on a 
recent market survey and Night Shift Coach differential pay from a fixed amount 
to 5% of salary, which was presented to the Board on March 17, 2015 and on 
April 13, 2015 for approval.

Attachment:  Union Sanitary District Pay Schedule Effective April 13, 2015 

Page 12 of 97



1

Position Title
Minimum          

Bi-Weekly Pay      
Rate

Maximum             Bi-
Weekly Pay Rate

Accounting Tech Specialist $3,041.23 $3,696.63
Accounting Technician II $2,703.31 $3,285.90
Administrative Specialist I $2,402.15 $2,919.83

Administrative Specialist II $2,528.58 $3,073.50
Assistant Engineer $3,427.81 $4,499.00
Assistant to the General Manager $2,924.79 $3,838.79
Assistant Storekeeper $2,335.82 $2,839.19

Associate Engineer $3,821.77 $5,016.08
Buyer I $2,455.78 $3,223.21
Buyer II $2,889.16 $3,792.02
Chemist I $3,305.21 $4,017.50
Chemist II $3,470.47 $4,218.38
Coach, Business Services $4,426.46 $5,809.72
Coach, Capital Improvement Projects $5,128.54 $6,731.21
Coach, Collection Services $4,105.64 $5,388.65
Coach, Customer Service $4,580.38 $6,011.74
Coach, Electrical & Instrumentation $4,150.57 $5,447.62
Coach, Environmental Compliance $4,120.45 $5,408.09
Coach - Mechanical Maintenance $4,032.52 $5,292.68
Coach, Research & Support/Sr. Process Engineer $4,580.38 $6,011.74
Coach, Wastewater Operations (TPO) $4,257.04 $5,587.38
Collection System Worker I $2,481.78 $3,016.62
Collection System Worker II $2,729.97 $3,318.30
Communications Coordinator $3,371.40 $4,097.95
Construction Inspector I $2,887.70 $3,510.02
Construction Inspector II $3,176.47 $3,861.02
Construction Inspector III $3,303.54 $4,015.46
Customer Service Fee Analyst $2,744.97 $3,336.52
Engineering Technician I $2,786.27 $3,386.74
Engineering Technician II $3,064.90 $3,725.41
Engineering Technician III $3,371.40 $4,097.95
Environmental Compliance (EC) Inspector I $2,727.98 $3,315.88
Environmental Compliance (EC) Inspector II $3,069.05 $3,730.45
Environmental Compliance (EC) Inspector III $3,406.64 $4,140.79
Environmental Compliance (EC) Inspector IV $3,645.10 $4,430.65
Environmental Control (EC) Outreach Representative $3,406.64 $4,140.79

Effective April 13, 2015

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT PAY SCHEDULE

Page 13 of 97



2

Position Title
Minimum          

Bi-Weekly Pay      
Rate

Maximum             Bi-
Weekly Pay Rate

Effective April 13, 2015

Environmental Health and Safety Program Manager $3,798.63 $4,985.70
Environmental Program Coordinator $3,728.03 $4,893.04
Fleet Mechanic I $2,751.67 $3,344.67
Fleet Mechanic II $3,081.87 $3,746.04
General Manager $7,074.72 $9,285.56
Human Resources Administrator $4,591.87 $6,026.83
Human Resources Analyst $3,210.96 $4,214.38
InformationTechnology Administrator $4,367.30 $5,732.08
Information Technology Analyst $3,089.29 $4,054.70
Instrument Tech/Electrician $3,389.49 $4,119.94
Janitor $1,840.39 $2,237.01
Junior Engineer $3,085.03 $4,049.10
Laboratory Director $4,111.05 $4,997.00
Lead Collection System Worker $3,002.96 $3,650.05
Maintenance Assistant $1,182.47 $1,437.30
Manager, Business Services $6,291.21 $8,257.22
Manager, Collection Services $5,528.78 $7,256.52
Manager, Maintenance $5,528.78 $7,256.52
Manager, Technical Services $6,107.76 $8,016.44
Manager, Treatment & Disposal Services $5,528.78 $7,256.52
Mechanic I $2,783.77 $3,383.69
Mechanic II $3,117.83 $3,789.75
Mechanic XL $3,714.66 $3,979.24
Organizational Performance Program Manager $3,985.83 $5,231.41
Painter $2,861.01 $3,477.57
Planner/Scheduler I $3,196.08 $3,884.86
Planner/Scheduler II $3,436.87 $4,177.54
Plant Operations Trainer $3,775.57 $4,589.22
Plant Operator I $2,655.79 $3,228.14
Plant Operator II $2,947.94 $3,583.24
Plant Operator III $3,371.03 $4,097.51
Plant Operator XL $4,016.32 $4,302.38
Principal Engineer $4,640.11 $6,090.14
Principal Financial Analyst $3,694.37 $4,848.86
Purchasing Agent $3,637.65 $4,774.42
Receptionist $2,100.44 $2,553.10
Senior Accountant $3,314.23 $4,349.93
Senior Database Administrator / Developer $3,875.52 $5,086.62

Senior Engineer $4,144.15 $5,439.20

Page 14 of 97



3

Position Title
Minimum          

Bi-Weekly Pay      
Rate

Maximum             Bi-
Weekly Pay Rate

Effective April 13, 2015

Senior Geographic Information System (GIS)/Database 
Administrator $3,875.52 $5,086.62
Senior Information Technology Analyst $3,432.55 $4,505.22
Senior Network Administrator $3,785.53 $4,968.51
Senior Planner/Scheduler $3,648.47 $4,788.62
Senior Process Engineer $4,144.15 $5,439.20
Storekeeper I $2,953.54 $3,590.06
Storekeeper II $3,101.22 $3,769.55
Technical Training Program Manager $3,625.89 $4,758.98
Utility Worker $2,267.32 $2,755.94

Approved by: _________________________________ Date: ____________
                                   President, Board of Directors

Board of Directors: Directors meet or serve in their official capacity 3 – 12 times per month with a 
maximum of six paid meetings/month at a rate of $212.10 per meeting and are paid for a maximum of one 
meeting per day. 

Page 15 of 97



Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy
  
Officers
Paul R. Eldredge, PE
General Manager/ 
District Engineer
  
David M. O’Hara
Attorney

DATE: April 6, 2015

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer
Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services
Rollie R. Arbolante, Customer Service Team Coach
Al D. Bunyi, Associate Engineer 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 9 - Meeting of April 13, 2015
Award the Construction Contract for the Newark Backyard Sanitary 
Sewer Relocation Project – Phase 2 to Ranger Pipelines, Inc.

Recommendation

Award the construction contract for the Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer Relocation 
Project – Phase 2 to Ranger Pipelines, Inc. in the amount of $2,085,270.  Funds for the 
Project have been budgeted in the Renewal and Replacement Fund.

Background

The purpose of the Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer Replacement Project is to 
improve the existing gravity sewer system within the residential neighborhood located 
northerly of the intersection of Dairy Avenue and Cherry Street in the City of Newark.  
The existing sewers are only 6 inches in diameter, have very flat slopes, and require 
frequent maintenance.  The sewers are also located in backyard easements and are 
very difficult to access for maintenance and inspection.  The goal of the project is to 
relocate the existing backyard sewer mains and laterals to the public streets fronting the 
homes.    

The Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer Relocation Project Phase 2 is the second phase 
of the three-phase project to relocate the sanitary sewer mains in the Flat Tops area. In
Phase 1, 33 sewer laterals were relocated to the Dairy Avenue and Cherry Street.
Phase 2 includes the relocation of 93 sanitary sewer laterals to new sanitary sewer 
mains that will be constructed within George Avenue, Jennifer Street, Deborah Street, 

Page 16 of 97



Agenda Item No. 9 
Meeting of April 13, 2015
Page 2 

Leone Street and parts of Zulmida Avenue and Noel Avenue.  A vicinity map showing 
the project area is attached.  

Scope of Work

The Project consists of the following major work items: 

• Construction of approximately 3,755 linear feet of 8-inch diameter sanitary 
sewer by open-cut method.

• Installation of 4-inch diameter sanitary sewer laterals, primarily by horizontal 
directional drilling (HDD) for 93 residences.

• Connection of existing concrete encased front yard sanitary sewer laterals to 
new sanitary sewer mains for 10 residences.

• Removal of approximately 475 linear feet of existing 6-inch diameter sanitary 
sewer.

• Abandonment of approximately 3,535 linear feet of existing 6-inch diameter 
sanitary sewer. 

• Construction of 12 standard sanitary sewer manholes.
• Removal of 11 sanitary sewer manholes/risers and abandonment of 8 

sanitary sewer manholes/risers in place.

Bid Results

The project was advertised for bids on March 3, 2015 and then again on March 10,
2015. Two bids were received and opened on March 31, 2015 with the total bid 
amounts shown as follows:

Contractor Total Base Bid Amount
Ranger Pipelines, Inc. $2,085,270.00
K.J. Woods Construction, Inc. $2,088,000.00

The engineer's estimate for the Project was $2,574,000.  A bid tabulation sheet is 
attached. 

Seven prospective bidders attended the mandatory pre-bid meeting on March 19, 2015,
yet only two bids were received.  One contractor couldn’t meet the horizontal directional 
drilling (HDD) experience qualification required.  Another contractor felt their bid would 
not be competitive.  Other contractors did not submit bids due to conflicts with their own 
construction schedules.  

Page 17 of 97



Agenda Item No. 9 
Meeting of April 13, 2015
Page 3 

Ranger Pipelines, Inc. Bid

Ranger Pipelines, Inc. submitted the apparent low bid of $2,085,270 that is
approximately 9.0% below the Engineer’s Estimate of $2,574,000. Ranger Pipeline’s 
bid is only $2,730 more than the bid submitted by the second bidder, K.J. Woods 
Construction.  District staff reviewed the bid documents submitted by Ranger Pipelines, 
Inc. and found them to be in order.  Ranger Pipelines, Inc.’s contractor license is current 
and active.  Ranger Pipelines, Inc. has completed multiple capital improvement projects 
in other public agencies and for the District over the past several years.  The most 
recent project completed for the District was the Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer 
Relocation Project - Phase 1.  The project was completed within the contract time 
allowed with minimal change orders totaling 0.5% of the construction contract amount.
Staff was satisfied with their work performance for the project.

Construction

The contractor has 150 consecutive calendar days to complete the project from Notice 
to Proceed, which puts the estimated substantial completion date in late September 
2015. Project design was completed by West Yost Associates in March 2015.  Full time 
construction management and inspection will be provided from an outside consultant
yet to be selected.

Ranger Pipelines has verified and confirmed the bid with staff and there has been no
bid protest received from the other bidder. Staff recommends that the Board award the 
construction contract for the Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer Replacement Project – 
Phase 2 to Ranger Pipelines, Inc. in the amount of $2,085,270.

PRE/SEG/RRA/ADB:ks

Attachments: Vicinity Map
Bid Tab Sheet

Page 18 of 97



Fo
r 

U
S

D
 u

se
 o

n
ly

P
H

A
S

E
3

P
H

A
S

E
2

P
H

A
S

E
1



1 
of

 1

Pr
oj

ec
t N

o.
 8

00
-4

36
M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

5

Ite
m

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

U
ni

t
Es

tim
at

ed
 

Q
ua

nt
ity

U
ni

t P
ric

e
To

ta
l B

id
 P

ric
e

U
ni

t B
id

 
Pr

ic
e

To
ta

l B
id

 P
ric

e
U

ni
t B

id
 

Pr
ic

e
To

ta
l B

id
 P

ric
e

H
ig

h
Lo

w
A

ve
ra

ge
1

M
ob

ili
za

tio
n/

D
em

ob
ili

za
tio

n
LS

1
 $

   
   

 1
21

,0
00

.0
0 

 $
   

   
12

1,
00

0.
00

 
 $

 5
0,

00
0.

00
  

$ 
   

   
 5

0,
00

0.
00

 
 $

 6
5,

00
0.

00
  

$ 
   

   
 6

5,
00

0.
00

 
65

,0
00

.0
0

$
50

,0
00

.0
0

$
57

,5
00

.0
0

$
2

C
on

st
ru

ct
 8

-in
ch

 D
ia

m
et

er
 S

D
R

-2
6 

PV
C

 
Sa

ni
ta

r y
 S

ew
er

 b
y 

O
pe

n-
C

ut
 m

et
ho

d
LF

31
75

 $
   

   
   

   
  2

00
.0

0 
 $

   
   

63
5,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
22

2.
00

  
$ 

   
  7

04
,8

50
.0

0 
 $

   
   

24
5.

00
  

$ 
   

  7
77

,8
75

.0
0 

24
5.

00
$

22
2.

00
$

23
3.

50
$

3
C

on
st

ru
ct

 8
-in

ch
 D

ia
m

et
er

 C
-9

00
 D

R
-1

4 
PV

C
 

Sa
ni

ta
r y

 S
ew

er
 b

y 
O

pe
n-

C
ut

 M
et

ho
d 

LF
23

0
 $

   
   

   
   

  2
05

.0
0 

 $
   

   
  4

7,
15

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

26
0.

00
  

$ 
   

   
 5

9,
80

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

26
0.

00
  

$ 
   

   
 5

9,
80

0.
00

 
26

0.
00

$
26

0.
00

$
26

0.
00

$

4
R

em
ov

e 
an

d 
R

ep
la

ce
 E

xi
st

in
g 

6-
in

ch
 D

ia
m

et
er

 
C

on
cr

et
e 

En
ca

se
d 

Sa
ni

ta
ry

 S
ew

er
 w

ith
 8

-in
ch

 
D

ia
m

et
er

 S
D

R
-2

6 
PV

C
 S

an
ita

ry
 S

ew
er

 b
y 

O
pe

n-
C

ut
 M

et
ho

d

EA
45

0
 $

   
   

   
   

  2
20

.0
0 

 $
   

   
  9

9,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

26
0.

00
  

$ 
   

  1
17

,0
00

.0
0 

 $
   

   
27

0.
00

  
$ 

   
  1

21
,5

00
.0

0 
27

0.
00

$
26

0.
00

$
26

5.
00

$

5
Sa

ni
ta

ry
 S

ew
er

 L
at

er
al

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t (
Si

ng
le

 
C

on
ne

ct
io

ns
) b

y 
H

D
D

 M
et

ho
d

EA
82

 $
   

   
   

12
,5

00
.0

0 
 $

   
1,

02
5,

00
0.

00
 

 $
 1

0,
00

0.
00

  
$ 

   
  8

20
,0

00
.0

0 
 $

   
7,

00
0.

00
  

$ 
   

  5
74

,0
00

.0
0 

10
,0

00
.0

0
$

7,
00

0.
00

$
8,

50
0.

00
$

6
Sa

ni
ta

ry
 S

ew
er

 L
at

er
al

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t (
M

ul
tip

le
 

C
on

ne
ct

io
ns

) b
y 

H
D

D
 M

et
ho

d
EA

6
 $

   
   

   
13

,5
00

.0
0 

 $
   

   
  8

1,
00

0.
00

 
 $

 1
1,

50
0.

00
  

$ 
   

   
 6

9,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
8,

00
0.

00
  

$ 
   

   
 4

8,
00

0.
00

 
11

,5
00

.0
0

$
8,

00
0.

00
$

9,
75

0.
00

$

7
Sa

ni
ta

ry
 S

ew
er

 L
at

er
al

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t f
or

 3
65

52
, 

36
56

0,
 3

65
68

, 3
65

76
, a

nd
 3

65
84

 L
eo

ne
 S

tre
et

 
b y

 O
pe

n-
C

ut
 M

et
ho

d
EA

5
 $

   
   

   
15

,0
00

.0
0 

 $
   

   
  7

5,
00

0.
00

 
 $

 1
1,

00
0.

00
  

$ 
   

   
 5

5,
00

0.
00

 
 $

 1
2,

00
0.

00
  

$ 
   

   
 6

0,
00

0.
00

 
12

,0
00

.0
0

$
11

,0
00

.0
0

$
11

,5
00

.0
0

$

8
C

on
ne

ct
 E

xi
st

in
g 

C
on

cr
et

e 
En

ca
se

d 
Fr

on
t Y

ar
d 

Sa
ni

ta
ry

 S
ew

er
 L

at
er

al
 to

 N
ew

 S
an

ita
ry

 S
ew

er
 

M
ai

n
EA

10
 $

   
   

   
  5

,0
00

.0
0 

 $
   

   
  5

0,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
1,

00
0.

00
  

$ 
   

   
 1

0,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

80
0.

00
  

$ 
   

   
   

8,
00

0.
00

 
1,

00
0.

00
$

80
0.

00
$

90
0.

00
$

9
C

on
st

ru
ct

 S
ta

nd
ar

d 
Sa

ni
ta

ry
 S

ew
er

 M
an

ho
le

EA
12

 $
   

   
   

  8
,5

00
.0

0 
 $

   
   

10
2,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

6,
00

0.
00

  
$ 

   
   

 7
2,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

7,
00

0.
00

  
$ 

   
   

 8
4,

00
0.

00
 

7,
00

0.
00

$
6,

00
0.

00
$

6,
50

0.
00

$

10
C

on
ne

ct
 to

 a
nd

 M
od

ify
 E

xi
st

in
g 

Sa
ni

ta
ry

 S
ew

er
 

M
an

ho
le

EA
1

 $
   

   
   

  3
,0

00
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
 3

,0
00

.0
0 

 $
   

   
50

0.
00

  
$ 

   
   

   
   

50
0.

00
 

 $
   

2,
00

0.
00

  
$ 

   
   

   
2,

00
0.

00
 

2,
00

0.
00

$
50

0.
00

$
1,

25
0.

00
$

11
R

em
ov

e 
Ex

is
tin

g 
Sa

ni
ta

ry
 S

ew
er

 M
an

ho
le

 o
r 

R
is

er
EA

11
 $

   
   

   
  3

,0
00

.0
0 

 $
   

   
  3

3,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

50
0.

00
  

$ 
   

   
   

5,
50

0.
00

 
 $

   
1,

50
0.

00
  

$ 
   

   
 1

6,
50

0.
00

 
1,

50
0.

00
$

50
0.

00
$

1,
00

0.
00

$

12
Ab

an
do

n 
Ex

is
tin

g 
Sa

ni
ta

ry
 S

ew
er

 M
an

ho
le

 o
r 

R
is

er
EA

8
 $

   
   

   
  2

,5
00

.0
0 

 $
   

   
  2

0,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

20
0.

00
  

$ 
   

   
   

1,
60

0.
00

 
 $

   
1,

00
0.

00
  

$ 
   

   
   

8,
00

0.
00

 
1,

00
0.

00
$

20
0.

00
$

60
0.

00
$

13
R

em
ov

e 
Ex

is
tin

g 
6-

in
ch

 D
ia

m
et

er
 S

an
ita

ry
 

Se
w

er
 (C

on
cr

et
e 

En
ca

se
d 

or
 N

ot
 C

on
cr

et
e 

En
ca

se
d )

LF
47

5
 $

   
   

   
   

  1
00

.0
0 

 $
   

   
  4

7,
50

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

  1
0.

00
  

$ 
   

   
   

4,
75

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

12
0.

00
  

$ 
   

   
 5

7,
00

0.
00

 
12

0.
00

$
10

.0
0

$
65

.0
0

$

14
Ab

an
do

n 
Ex

is
tin

g 
6-

in
ch

 D
ia

m
et

er
 S

an
ita

ry
 

Se
w

er
LF

35
35

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
5.

00
  

$ 
   

   
 1

7,
67

5.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
 2

.0
0 

 $
   

   
   

 7
,0

70
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
 5

.0
0 

 $
   

   
  1

7,
67

5.
00

 
5.

00
$

2.
00

$
3.

50
$

15
Se

w
ag

e 
Fl

ow
 C

on
tro

l
LS

1
 $

   
   

   
10

,0
00

.0
0 

 $
   

   
  1

0,
00

0.
00

 
 $

 1
0,

00
0.

00
  

$ 
   

   
 1

0,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
5,

00
0.

00
  

$ 
   

   
   

5,
00

0.
00

 
10

,0
00

.0
0

$
5,

00
0.

00
$

7,
50

0.
00

$
16

Pr
oj

ec
t L

ia
is

on
LS

1
 $

   
   

   
20

,0
00

.0
0 

 $
   

   
  2

0,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
4,

00
0.

00
  

$ 
   

   
   

4,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
9,

15
0.

00
  

$ 
   

   
   

9,
15

0.
00

 
9,

15
0.

00
$

4,
00

0.
00

$
6,

57
5.

00
$

17
Tr

af
fic

 C
on

tro
l

LS
1

 $
   

   
   

20
,0

00
.0

0 
 $

   
   

  2
0,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

6,
00

0.
00

  
$ 

   
   

   
6,

00
0.

00
 

 $
 1

0,
00

0.
00

  
$ 

   
   

 1
0,

00
0.

00
 

10
,0

00
.0

0
$

6,
00

0.
00

$
8,

00
0.

00
$

18
D

ew
at

er
in

g
LS

1
 $

   
   

   
30

,0
00

.0
0 

 $
   

   
  3

0,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
2,

00
0.

00
  

$ 
   

   
   

2,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
5,

00
0.

00
  

$ 
   

   
   

5,
00

0.
00

 
5,

00
0.

00
$

2,
00

0.
00

$
3,

50
0.

00
$

19
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s 

Pa
ve

m
en

t R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t a
s 

D
ire

ct
ed

 b
y 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
M

an
ag

er
SF

50
00

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
6.

00
  

$ 
   

   
 3

0,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
 3

.0
0 

 $
   

   
  1

5,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
 5

.0
0 

 $
   

   
  2

5,
00

0.
00

 
5.

00
$

3.
00

$
4.

00
$

20
R

em
ov

e 
an

d 
R

ep
la

ce
 E

xi
st

in
g 

15
-in

ch
 

D
ia

m
et

er
 C

la
ss

 II
I R

C
P 

St
or

m
 D

ra
in

 b
y 

O
pe

n-
C

ut
 M

et
ho

d
LF

90
 $

   
   

   
   

  2
50

.0
0 

 $
   

   
  2

2,
50

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

20
0.

00
  

$ 
   

   
 1

8,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

25
0.

00
  

$ 
   

   
 2

2,
50

0.
00

 
25

0.
00

$
20

0.
00

$
22

5.
00

$

21
C

os
t f

or
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 a
ll 

sh
or

in
g 

an
d 

br
ac

in
g 

on
 a

ll 
Bi

d 
ite

m
s 

ab
ov

e 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

bu
t n

ot
 li

m
ite

d 
to

 th
at

 
as

 re
qu

ire
d 

by
 S

ec
tio

ns
 6

70
0-

67
08

 o
f t

he
 L

ab
or

 
C

od
e

LS
1

 $
   

   
   

50
,0

00
.0

0 
 $

   
   

  5
0,

00
0.

00
 

 $
 2

0,
00

0.
00

  
$ 

   
   

 2
0,

00
0.

00
 

 $
 7

8,
00

0.
00

  
$ 

   
   

 7
8,

00
0.

00
 

78
,0

00
.0

0
$

20
,0

00
.0

0
$

49
,0

00
.0

0
$

22
C

it y
 o

f N
ew

ar
k 

En
cr

oa
ch

m
en

t P
er

m
it 

*
Al

lo
w

an
ce

1
 $

   
   

   
30

,0
00

.0
0 

 $
   

   
  3

0,
00

0.
00

 
 $

 3
0,

00
0.

00
  

$ 
   

   
 3

0,
00

0.
00

 
 $

 3
0,

00
0.

00
  

$ 
   

   
 3

0,
00

0.
00

 
30

,0
00

.0
0

$
30

,0
00

.0
0

$
30

,0
00

.0
0

$
23

O
ve

r E
xc

av
at

e 
an

d 
In

st
al

l R
oc

k 
Ba

lla
st

 A
s 

D
ire

ct
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
M

an
ag

er
*

C
Y

80
$6

0
 $

   
   

   
 4

,8
00

.0
0 

 $
   

   
  4

0.
00

  
$ 

   
   

   
3,

20
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
  5

0.
00

  
$ 

   
   

   
4,

00
0.

00
 

50
.0

0
$

40
.0

0
$

45
.0

0
$

To
ta

l 
 $

   
2,

57
3,

62
5.

00
 

 $
   

2,
08

5,
27

0.
00

 
 $

   
2,

08
8,

00
0.

00
 

B
id

 A
dj

us
tm

en
t

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
-  

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

 - 
  

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
 - 

  
To

ta
l A

fte
r B

id
 A

d j
us

tm
en

t
2,

57
3,

62
5.

00
$

2,
08

5,
27

0.
00

$
2,

08
8,

00
0.

00
$

* O
rig

in
al

 E
ng

in
ee

r's
 E

st
im

at
e 

w
as

 $
2,

55
0,

00
0 

Es
tim

at
e 

fo
r B

id
 It

em
s 

#2
2 

w
as

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
fr

om
 $

10
,0

00
 to

 $
30

,0
00

 a
fte

r c
oo

rd
in

at
io

n 
w

ith
 C

ity
 o

f N
ew

ar
k 

an
d 

up
da

te
d 

in
 A

dd
en

du
m

 #
1.

  
B

id
 It

em
 #

23
 w

as
 a

ls
o 

ad
de

d 
by

 A
dd

en
du

m
 #

1.

R
an

ge
r P

ip
el

in
es

, I
nc

.
K

.J
. W

oo
ds

 C
on

st
., 

In
c.

St
at

is
tic

s 
of

 U
nt

o 
Pr

ic
es

N
ew

ar
k 

B
ac

ky
ar

d 
Se

w
er

 R
el

oc
at

io
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t -

 P
ha

se
 2

En
gi

ne
er

s 
Es

tim
at

e 

P
ag

e 
20

 o
f 9

7



Directors
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Paul R. Eldredge, PE
General Manager/
District Engineer

David M. O'Hara
Attorney

DATE: April 7, 2015

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer
Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services
Raymond Chau, CIP Coach

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 10 - Meeting of April 13, 2015
Authorize the General Manager to Execute Amendment No. 1 to 
Task Order No. 3 with Carollo Engineers for Providing 
Engineering Services during Construction of the Cogeneration 
Project

Recommendation

Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute Amendment 
No. 1 to Task Order No. 3 with Carollo Engineers in the amount of $130,376 for 
providing engineering services during construction of the Cogeneration Project
(Project). 

Background

On April 22, 2013, the Board authorized the General Manager to execute Task Order 
No. 3 with Carollo in the amount of $475,677 for providing engineering services during 
construction of the Project.  Carollo’s scope of services included submittal review, 
response to contractor’s requests for information (RFIs), preparation of clarification 
memoranda, meetings, site visits, and project management.

Due to the very complicated nature of the engine generator system, the contractor, 
D.W. Nicholson (DWN), had to coordinate many subsystems of the engine generators 
such as digester and natural gas piping; hot water pumps, heat exchangers, piping, 
instrumentation, and radiators; engine exhaust and heat recovery equipment; new 
480-volt electrical switchgear in the Cogeneration Building; and field wiring of the engine 
generator equipment and controls.

Page 21 of 97



Agenda Item No. 10
Meeting of April 13, 2015
Page 2 

The Project scope also included major underground construction elements, significant 
modifications to the plant's existing 12,000- and 480-volt electrical switchgears, and 
modifications to the plant’s digester gas collection and scrubbing systems.

There were several construction contract change orders that added significant scope to 
the Project, which required additional engineering services from Carollo.  For example, 
the new air permit issued by the Bay Area Air Quality Management District required the 
addition of oxidation catalysts on the engines’ exhaust piping due to the lower carbon 
monoxide emissions limit.  Another example is the PG&E interconnection agreement 
that required new protective devices on the plant’s 12,000-volt switchgear to monitor the 
power from the engine generators and to prevent the export of power to PG&E’s grid.

Amendment No. 1

This Project scope required detailed review and coordination of the contract plans, 
technical specifications, manufacturer’s installation and testing requirements, and 
contractor’s proposed installation means and methods.  This resulted in additional 
engineering services effort by Carollo than what was originally scoped in Task Order 
No. 3. Carollo also provided start-up and training services to staff, which was not 
budgeted in Task Order No. 3, prior to the commissioning of the engine generator and 
digester gas conditioning systems.

The budget status of Task Order No. 3 is provided in the table below: 

Task Description
Task Not-
to-Exceed 

Limit
Budget 

Expended
Budget 

Remaining

1.0 Submittal Review $231,706 $307,903 $(76,197)
2.0 RFIs $74,632 $100,018 $(25,386)
3.0 Clarification Memoranda $59,595 $78,428 $(18,833)
4.0 Informal RFIs $66,586 $38,523 $28,063
5.0 Meetings $13,693 $19,906 $(6,213)
6.0 Site Visits $12,602 $13,669 $(1,067)
7.0 Project Management $16,863 $23,510 $(6,648)
8.0 Start-up and Training (new task) $0 $24,095 $(24,095)

Total $475,677 $606,053 $(130,376)

Carollo’s Amendment No. 1 will add $130,376 to the original Task Order No. 3 budget 
which will have a revised not-to-exceed amount of $606,053. The table below 
compares the original assumptions and final quantities of some of the engineering 
services: 

Page 22 of 97



Agenda Item No. 10
Meeting of April 13, 2015
Page 3 

Engineering Service Original 
Assumption

Final
Quantity % Increase

Submittal Review 135 294 118%
RFIs Response 90 147 63%
Clarification Memoranda 18 23 28%
Meetings and Site Visits 30 51 78%

The total amounts for the Project’s agreement with Carollo are summarized in the table 
below:

Description Amount

Task Order No. 1 – Predesign Services $208,846

Task Order No. 2 – Final Design Services $1,162,100

Task Order No. 3 – Engineering Services 
During Construction $475,677

Proposed Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 
3 – Engineering Services During Construction $130,376 

Total for this Agreement $1,976,999

Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute Amendment 
No. 1 to Task Order No. 3 with Carollo Engineers in the amount of $130,376 for 
providing engineering services during construction of the Cogeneration Project.

PRE/SEG/RC:ks 

Attachment: Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 3

Page 23 of 97



Page 1 of 3

COGENERATION PROJECT
800-359

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO TASK ORDER NO. 3 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT
AND

CAROLLO ENGINEERS, INC.

This Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 3 (Amendment) is issued by the Union 
Sanitary District (District) and accepted by Carollo Engineers, Inc (Engineer), pursuant 
to the mutual promises, covenants, and conditions contained in the Agreement between 
the above named parties dated the 15th day of March 2011, associated with the 
Cogeneration Project (Project).

PURPOSE

The purpose of the Amendment is to increase the Not-to-Exceed limit for the 
Engineering Services During Construction (Task Order No. 3) budget.  The budget 
increase is needed to compensate the Engineer for providing services that were beyond 
the original scope work of Task Order No. 3.  The additional services were largely the 
result of significant unforeseen design issues and coordination with contractors, 
equipment suppliers, PG&E, and District that were required during the construction 
period to complete the Project.  The Project is now substantially complete and there are 
no further Engineering services anticipated. 

PROJECT COORDINATION

All work related to this Amendment were coordinated through the District’s Project 
Manager, Raymond Chau.  

ENGINEER’S SCOPE OF SERVICES

Exhibit A summarizes the subtasks completed and budget status for Task Order No. 3 
and provides explanations for the budget over runs.

TASK 1.0 – SUBMITTAL REVIEW
Engineer’s budget allowance is based on reviewing two hundred ninety-four (294) 
submittals at an average review time of eight (8) hours per submittal.  This is an 
increase of one hundred fifty-nine (159) submittals above the original assumption of one 
hundred thirty-five (135) submittals.

Page 24 of 97



Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 3
Page 2 of 3 

TASK 2.0 – REQUEST FOR INFORMATION
Engineer’s budget allowance is based on reviewing one hundred forty-seven (147) RFIs 
at an average review time of four (4) hours per RFI.  This is an increase of fifty-seven 
(57) RFIs above the original assumption of ninety (90) RFIs.

TASK 3.0 – CLARIFICATION MEMORANDA
Engineer’s budget allowance is based on preparing twenty-three (23) Clarification 
Memoranda at an average of sixteen (16) hours per Clarification Memoranda.  This is 
an increase of five (5) Clarification Memoranda above the original assumption of 
eighteen (18) Clarification Memoranda.

TASK 5.0 – MEETINGS and TASK 6.0 – SITE VISITS
Engineer’s budget allowance is based on Engineer attending fifty-one (51) meetings 
and site visits at an average of four (4) hours for each meeting and site visit.  This is an 
increase of twenty-one (21) above the original assumption of thirty (30) meetings and 
site visits.

TASK 7.0 – PROJECT MANAGEMENT
Engineer’s budget allowance is increased by $6,648 for a total of $23,510 for this task.

TASK 8.0 – START-UP AND TRAINING
Engineer shall prepare start-up and operational documents and provide training to 
District staff on the new cogeneration and digester gas conditioning systems.  The 
training information shall provide District staff the project background, design criteria, 
and impacts to the existing digester gas and hot water piping systems.  In addition, 
Engineer shall provide information on the Self-Generation Incentive Program so that 
staff can gain understanding on the operational parameters and goals of the program in 
order to qualify for the grant money.

Engineer’s budget allowance shall be $24,095 for this task.

PAYMENT TO ENGINEER

The previously approved Not-to-Exceed limit for Task Order No. 3 was $475,677.  As 
shown in Exhibit A, a total of $606,053 in engineering services was required to complete 
the work, which is $130,376 above the Not-to-Exceed limit.   This Amendment increases 
the Not-to-Exceed limit for Task Order No. 3 to $606,053 to compensate the Engineer 
for work performed beyond the original scope of work.

The following table summarizes all task orders and amendments, if any, previously 
executed under the Agreement.

Page 25 of 97



Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 3
Page 3 of 3 

Task Order/Amendment
Not to 

Exceed 
Amount

Board 
Authorization 

Required? 
(Yes/No)

District Staff 
Approval

Task Order No. 1 –
Predesign Services $208,846 Yes Richard Currie

Task Order No. 2 – Final 
Design Services $1,162,100 Yes Richard Currie

Task Order No. 3 –
Engineering Services 
During Construction

$475,677 Yes Richard Currie

Amendment No. 1 to Task 
Order No. 3 – Additional 
Engineering Services 
During Construction

$130,376 Yes Paul R. Eldredge

Total $1,976,999

EFFECTIVE DATE

This Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 3 is effective as of the ___ day of April 2015. 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, duly authorized representatives of the District and the 
Engineer have executed this Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 3 evidencing its 
issuance by the District and acceptance by the Engineer. 

CAROLLO ENGINEERS, INC. UNION SANITARY DISTRICT
  

Accepted this ______ day of April 2015 

By: ____________________________ By: _______________________________ 
  Paul R. Eldredge, P.E.

General Manager/District Engineer

Page 26 of 97



Ta
sk

De
sc

rip
tio

n
 S

ub
ta

sk
 N

ot
-t

o-
Ex

ce
ed

 L
im

it 
 B

ud
ge

t 
Ex

pe
nd

ed
 

 B
ud

ge
t 

Re
m

ai
ni

ng
 

Ex
pl

an
at

io
n

1.
0

Su
bm

itt
al

 R
ev

ie
w

23
1,

70
6

$ 
   

   
   

  
30

7,
90

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

(7
6,

19
7)

$ 
   

   
   

   
A 

to
ta

l o
f 2

94
 su

bm
itt

al
s r

ev
ie

w
s w

er
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t. 

 T
hi

s i
s m

or
e 

th
an

 d
ou

bl
e 

th
e 

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 n
um

be
r o

f 
re

vi
ew

s i
nc

lu
de

d 
in

 th
e 

sc
op

e 
of

 w
or

k 
(1

35
). 

  

2.
0

Re
qu

es
ts

 fo
r I

nf
or

m
at

io
n

74
,6

32
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
10

0,
01

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

(2
5,

38
6)

$ 
   

   
   

   
A 

to
ta

l o
f 1

47
 R

eq
ue

st
s f

or
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

er
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 

co
m

pl
et

e 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t. 
 T

hi
s i

s 5
7 

m
or

e 
re

vi
ew

s t
ha

n 
 w

er
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
sc

op
e 

of
 w

or
k 

(9
0)

.  

3.
0

Cl
ar

ifi
ca

tio
n 

M
em

or
an

da
59

,5
95

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

78
,4

28
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
(1

8,
83

3)
$ 

   
   

   
   

A 
to

ta
l o

f 2
3 

Cl
ar

ifi
ca

tio
n 

M
em

or
an

da
 w

er
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t. 

 T
hi

s i
s 5

 m
or

e 
cl

ar
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 th

an
 w

er
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 

th
e 

sc
op

e 
of

 w
or

k 
(1

8)
.

4.
0

In
fo

rm
al

 R
eq

ue
st

s f
or

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

66
,5

86
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
38

,5
23

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

28
,0

63
$ 

   
   

   
   

 

5.
0

M
ee

tin
gs

13
,6

93
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
19

,9
06

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

(6
,2

13
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

Ca
ro

llo
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

ed
 in

 a
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

51
 m

ee
tin

gs
 a

nd
 si

te
 v

isi
ts

 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

co
ur

se
 o

f t
he

 p
ro

je
ct

.  
Th

is 
is 

al
m

os
t d

ou
bl

e 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f s

ite
 v

isi
ts

 a
nd

 m
ee

tin
gs

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
sc

op
e 

of
 w

or
k 

(3
0)

. 

6.
0

Si
te

 V
isi

ts
12

,6
02

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

13
,6

69
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
(1

,0
67

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
Se

e 
ex

pl
an

at
io

n 
ab

ov
e 

fo
r T

as
k 

5.
0.

7.
0

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

em
en

t
16

,8
63

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

23
,5

10
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
(6

,6
47

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
Du

e 
to

 th
e 

ou
t o

f s
co

pe
 se

rv
ic

es
 d

es
cr

ib
ed

 a
bo

ve
, a

dd
iti

on
al

 
Pr

oj
ec

t M
an

ag
em

en
t w

as
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t 
be

yo
nd

 o
rig

in
al

ly
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
. 

8.
0

St
ar

t-
up

 a
nd

 T
ra

in
in

g
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

24
,0

95
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
(2

4,
09

5)
$ 

   
   

   
   

St
ar

t-
up

 a
nd

 T
ra

in
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 w

er
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 a
t t

he
 D

ist
ric

t's
 

re
qu

es
t  

bu
t h

av
e 

no
t y

et
 b

ee
n 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
to

 th
e 

Ta
sk

 O
rd

er
 

N
o.

 3
.  

To
ta

ls
47

5,
67

7
$ 

   
   

   
  

60
6,

05
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
(1

30
,3

76
)

$ 
   

   
   

EX
HI

BI
T 

A 
- T

AS
K 

O
RD

ER
 N

O
. 3

 B
U

DG
ET

 S
TA

TU
S



Directors
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers
Paul Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 

David M. O’Hara 
Attorney

DATE: April 6, 2015

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services 

 Michael Dunning, Coach of Environmental Compliance 
 Alex Paredes, Environmental Programs Coordinator 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 11- Meeting of April 13, 2015 
 Schedule a Public Hearing to Adopt Ordinance  No. 36.03, Sewer 

Use Ordinance 

Recommendation

Staff recommends the Board set the time and place for holding the public hearing to 
adopt revisions to Pretreatment Ordinance No. 36, at 7:00 p.m. on May 26, 2015, in the 
Boardroom at 5072 Benson Road, Union City. 

The attached Notice of the time and place of the hearing will be published in the Argus 
newspaper on April 15 and April 22, 2015. 

Background

Union Sanitary District Ordinance No. 36 provides requirements for restrictions on 
discharges to the sanitary sewer.  This ordinance applies to industrial, commercial and 
residential dischargers and establishes the requirements for USD’s pretreatment 
program to be in compliance with federal, state and local laws regulating discharges.

Whenever an Ordinance is revised, it is required to hold a public hearing to allow a 
forum for the public to comment on the proposed changes.  The changes cosist of 
adopting an ammonia local limit, changing the Ordinance name and incorporating a 
version convention, and, revising the Signature Requirement and Hazardous Waste 
Discharge Notification to reflect the current language in the Federal Regulations.  A 
summary of the proposed revisions to Ordinance 36 are attached. 

Page 28 of 97



Agenda Item No. 11 
Meeting of April 13, 2015 
Page 2 

A Local Limits Assessment was completed in August 2012 to evaluate whether the 
existing local limits were sufficient to protect the Plant from exceeding effluent 
limitations contained in the District’s National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) permits and enable the District to meets its other compliance and operational 
requirements and objectives.

Although the Local Limits Assessment findings concluded that a new local limit for 
ammonia was not immediately necessary, the Local Limits Assessment also 
recommended the District continue to assess the need for such a limit to prevent large 
increases in industrial loading of ammonia in the future, as happened in the past with a 
discharger that is no longer in the service area.   In late 2012 and early 2013, the 
District conducted sampling for ammonia in industrial users’ discharges, wastewater in 
residential and commercial areas, and in the Plant’s anaerobic digesters in support of 
the consideration of a new ammonia local limit.  Based on the results of this sampling, 
the District determined that a new ammonia local limit should be implemented to all 
permitted Industrial Users (IUs).

The ammonia local limit will be a concentration-based limit that will vary among IUs, with 
users divided into three tiers based on average discharge flow rate.  Those users with 
the highest discharge flow rates will have lower ammonia limits, an approach intended 
to prevent any significant mass loading that could adversely impact the Plant.  The local 
limit for dischargers with an average flow rate less than 10,000 gpd would be 225 mg/L; 
for dischargers with a flow rate between 10,000 and 25,000 gpd, the limit would be 150 
mg/L; and for dischargers with a flow rate above 25,000 gpd, the limit would be 75 
mg/L.

The new local limit will impact a small number of current IUs.  The District will assist 
existing IUs in achieving compliance by offering technical guidance and, if necessary, 
granting compliance schedules that allow an IU to reach compliance over several years.
The local limit for ammonia will be enforced using multi-sample averages. 

In April and May of 2014, permitted Industrial Users (IU’s) were invited to a meeting at 
the District to inform them of the proposed adoption of the new ammonia local limit.  In
July 2014,the Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) was notified of the 
District’s intent on adopting the proposed ammonia local limit.  Staff has not received 
any negative comments from the regulated IU’s or the RWQCB regarding the adoption 
of the ammonia local limit.

Also, the name, Pretreatment Ordinance and Technically Based Local Limits Ordinance 
No. 36, will be changed to Sewer Use Ordinance No. 36.03. The change in name will 
help clarify that the Ordinance applies to Residential, Commercial and Industrial users, 
not just Industrial User’s as the current ordinance title might suggest.   

In addition, version history is being incorporated into the name change and is reflected 
by the (.03) designation as the third version of the current ordinance.  The first version 
(36.01) was the initial adoption of Ordinance 36 on February 1994 and the second 
(36.02) was the 2008 revision.  This version history protocol is identical to the current 

Page 29 of 97



Agenda Item No. 11 
Meeting of April 13, 2015 
Page 3 

process  used for revising other District ordinances.  This process will also reflect the 
Board Resolution number that authorized this change. 

Additional minor changes to Ordinance 36 are outlined in the attached Summary of the 
Proposed Revisions to Pretreatment Ordinance and Technically Based Local Limits 
Ordinance No. 36. 

The District is proposing to publish in the Argus, two Notices of Public Hearing, on April 
15 and April 22, 2015, notifying the public that the Board of Directors of Union Sanitary 
District will consider adoption of the above mentioned revisions to Ordinance No. 36.  A 
copy of Ordinance No. 36 with the proposed changes will be posted on USD’s web page 
under the “What’s New” tab, for the public to review. 

PRE/SEG/MD/AP:av

Attachments:

Summary of the Proposed Revisions to Pretreatment Ordinance and Technically Based 
Local Limits Ordinance No. 36. 

Notice of Public Hearing for Ordinance 36 Name Modification and Addition of the New 
Ammonia Local Limit 

Page 30 of 97



Page 1 of 4 

Summary of the Proposed Revisions to Pretreatment Ordinance and Technically 
Based Local Limits Ordinance No. 36 

The proposed changes to Pretreatment Ordinance 36 are as follows. Additions are 
shown underlined and deletions are shown with strikethrough.

1) The name of the Sewer Use Ordinance will be changed from Pretreatment Ordinance 
and Technically based Local Limits Ordinance No. 36 to Sewer Use Ordinance No. 
36.03.  The change in name of the Ordinance will help all Users subject to the 
Ordinance understand that it applies to residential, commercial and industrials users.  
Additionally, the change incorporates version history, which reflects similar ordinance 
update protocols used by other departments within USD.  This change in name will 
be applied throughout the Ordinance. 

2) Section No. 36.03 § 2.10 Limitations on Wastewater Strength is being revised to 
add language for the new ammonia local limit to control future ammonia loadings 
from current and future Industrial User’s (IU’s). 

 Section 2.10(b)(1)  

    “(b)   The following pollutant limits are established to protect against Pass Through 
and Interference. No person shall discharge wastewater containing in excess of: 

(1) The following limits are maximum allowable discharge limits (the maximum 
concentration of a pollutant allowed to be discharged at any time, determined 
from the analysis of any discrete or composite sample collected, independent of 
the industrial flow rate and the duration of the sampling event).  Limits for 
metals are for total recoverable metals. 

       No person shall discharge wastewater containing in excess of: 

 Arsenic 0.35 mg/L 
 Cadmium 0.2 mg/L 
 Copper 2.0 mg/L 
 Cyanide 0.65 mg/L 
 Lead  1.0 mg/L 
 Mercury 0.01 mg/L 
 Nickel  1.0 mg/L 
 Silver  0.5 mg/L 
 Total Chromium 2.0 mg/L 
 Zinc  3.0 mg/L 

Page 31 of 97



Page 2 of 4 

 TTO  2.13 mg/L 
 Formaldehyde 50.0 mg/L 
 Phenols 5.0 mg/L 

• having a temperature higher than 150° F (65.5° C), or any thermal 
discharge which as a result of temperature and/or volume causes the 
influent of the wastewater treatment plant  to exceed 104° F (40° C); 

• containing more than 300 mg/L of oil or grease of animal or vegetable 
origin, unless specifically approved by the District.  The District may 
approve, on a case by case basis, a modification to the analytical method if 
the discharger can demonstrate that constituents in their wastewater 
interfere with the freon extraction, hexane extraction or current EPA 
approved  procedure and have no negative impact on the POTW and/or 
receiving waters. 

• containing more than 100 mg/L of oil or grease of mineral or petroleum 
origin; 

• having a pH lower than 6.0 or higher than 12.0 units, or otherwise causing 
corrosive structural damage to the collection system, POTW or equipment, 
unless specifically approved by the District.  Under no circumstances will a 
pH of less than 5.0 or higher than 12.5 pH units be approved.

The above limits apply at the point where the wastewater is discharged to the POTW 
and are maximum allowable discharge limits (the maximum concentration of a 
pollutant allowed to be discharged at any time, determined from the analysis of any 
discrete or composite sample collected, independent of the industrial flow rate and 
the duration of the sampling event). …“

Section 2.10(b)(2)

“(2)  The following limits for ammonia are maximum allowable average 
concentrations. Limits are for total ammonia expressed as nitrogen.  Limits 
are tiered based on average daily flow, which is the arithmetic average of the 
permitted industrial user’s daily flows for the preceding calendar year and is 
equivalent to the flow rate used in establishing sewer service charges:

   Average Daily Flow    Ammonia Limit 

   <10,000 gallons per day (gpd)   225 mg/L as N 
   10,000 – 25,000 gpd    150 mg/L as N 
   >25,000 gpd      75 mg/L as N 

Compliance determination shall be based on the average of all valid and 
representative analyses occurring within a 6-month period

Page 32 of 97



Page 3 of 4 

For industrial users holding permits issued prior to January 1, 2014, the 
Manager may issue compliance schedules for ammonia as described in 
Sections 6.09 and 6.10.  In no case may these compliance schedules 
exceed 5 years.  All new permitted industrial users must comply with these 
limits upon initial discharge…”

3) Section No. 36.03 § 4.16 Signature Requirement is being revised to reflect the 
current language pursuant to Title 40 Protection of the Environment of the Code of 
Federal Regulations (CFR) 403.12 (l) Signatory requirements for Industrial User 
Reports.

Section 4.16(a)(1)(ii) 

 “ the manager of one or more manufacturing, production, or operation facilities 
employing more than 250 persons or having gross annual sales or expenditures 
exceeding $25 million (in second quarter 1980 dollars), if authority to sign 
documents has been assigned or delegated to the manager in accordance with 
corporate procedures. the manager of one or more manufacturing, production, or 
operating facilities, provided the manager is authorized to make management 
decisions which govern the operation of the regulated facility including having the 
explicit or implicit duty of making major capital investment recommendations, and 
initiate and direct other comprehensive measures to assure long-term 
environmental compliance with environmental laws and regulations; can ensure 
that the necessary systems are established or actions taken to gather complete 
and accurate information for control mechanism requirements; and where 
authority to sign documents has been assigned or delegated to the manager in 
accordance with corporate procedures…”

Section 4.16(a)(4) 

“If an authorization under paragraph (c) (3) of this section is no longer accurate 
because a different individual or position has responsibility for the overall 
operation of the facility, or overall responsibility for environmental matters for the 
company, a new authorization satisfying the requirements of paragraph (c) (3) of
this section must be submitted to the Agency prior to or together with any reports 
to be signed by an authorized representative.” 

4) Supplement: Hazardous Waste Discharge Notification is being revised to 
reflect the current language pursuant to Title 40 Protection of the Environment of 
the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 403.12 (p) Hazardous Waste Discharge 
Notification.

Page 33 of 97



Page 4 of 4 

“a. Any user who commences the discharge of hazardous waste 1.  The 
Industrial User shall notify the POTW, the EPA Regional Waste Management 
Division Director, and State hazardous waste authorities, in writing, of any 
discharge into the POTW of a substance which, if otherwise disposed of, would 
be a hazardous waste under 40 CFR Part 261.  Such notification must include 
the name of the hazardous waste as set forth in 40 CFR Part 261, the EPA 
hazardous waste number, and the type of discharge (continuous, batch, or 
other).  If the user discharges more than one hundred (100) kilograms of such 
waste per calendar month to the POTW, the notification also shall contain the 
following information to the extent such information is known and readily 
available to the Industrial User:  an identification of the hazardous constituents 
contained in the wastes, an estimation of the mass and concentration of such 
constituents in the wastestream discharged during that calendar month, and an 
estimation of the mass of constituents in the wastestream expected to be 
discharged during the following twelve (12) months.  All notifications must take 
place no later than within one hundred and eighty (180) days after the discharge 
commences of the effective date of this rule.  Industrial Users who commence 
discharging after the effective date of this rule shall provide the notification no 
later than 180 days after the discharge of the listed or characteristic hazardous 
waste.  Any notifications under this paragraph need be submitted only once for 
each hazardous waste discharged.  However, notifications of changed 
conditions discharges must be submitted under 40 CFR 403.12 (j) (Section 4.19 
20 of this ordinance).  The notification requirement in this section does not apply 
to pollutants already reported by users subject to categorical pretreatment 
standards under the self-monitoring requirements of 40 CFR 403.12 (b), (d) and 
(e)…”

Page 34 of 97



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE: UNION SANITARY DISTRICT
5072 BENSON ROAD
UNION CITY, CA 94587
CONTACT: Paul R. Eldredge
(510) 477 7500

April 15 and April 22, 2015

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Directors of Union Sanitary District will consider adoption of

revisions to Ordinance No. 36, which provides for the regulation of discharges to the sanitary sewer,

including compliance with State and Federal law. The nature of the revision is to modify the name of the

Ordinance, to add an Ammonia local limit in response to changes in USD’s NPDES Discharge Permit, and

to revise language of codified sections pursuant to recent versions of the Code of Federal Regulations.

The revised ordinance can be accessed on Union Sanitary District’s web page at

www.unionsanitary.com, under the “What’s New” tab, Ordinance No. 36 Revisions; or to request a hard

copy, please call (510) 477 7620.

NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that on Tuesday, the 26th of May 2015, at the hour of 7:00 P.M., at the Union

Sanitary District Boardroom, 5072 Benson Road, Union City, California, in said District, said Board will

hear and consider all comments, protests, and objections to said proposed revisions to Ordinance No.

36.

By order of the Board of Directors of Union Sanitary District.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT
Manny Fernandez

President

Page 35 of 97



Directors
Tom Handley 
Manny Hernandez 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager
District Engineer 

David M. O'Hara 
Attorney

DATE: April 3, 2015 

MEMO TO: Board of Directors – Union Sanitary District 

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
Rich Cortes, Business Services Manager 
Maria Scott, Principal Financial Analyst 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 12 – Meeting of April 13, 2015 
Approve a Change Order to the Agreement with Raftelis 
Financial Consultants, Inc. for the Sewer Service Charge Cost 
of Service Study. 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends that the Board approve Change orders No. 3 and 4 in the total 
amount of $7,840 with Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. for the Sewer Service Charge 
Cost of Service Study. 

Background 

The purpose of the Cost of Service Study is to determine sewer service charges for the 
Prop. 218 Notice for rates beginning with FY17.  The original budget for the Cost of 
Service study was $100,000.  The bid from Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. came in 
at $71,960.   

Change Order No. 3 is for inclusion of smoothing for all unit rates in the rate model and 
final report.  Change order No. 4 is for model input revisions and feature changes 
required by the District for use of the new rate model. 

The District anticipates completion of the study before June 30, 2015 in order to include 
information in the next Prop. 218 Notice this Summer or Fall for FY 2017 sewer service 
charge rates.  Staff anticipates additional future costs for model training and potential 
Proposition 218 support.   

Page 36 of 97



Board of Directors 
Meeting of April 13, 2015 
Page Two 
 

5072 Benson Road 
Union City, CA  94587 

(510) 477-7500     Fax: (510) 477-7501 

 
The following table summarizes the current change orders.   
 
  

Change 
Order No.

Description Cost 

1 Data Updates and Clean-up $3,800 
2 Rate Model Training and Manual $6,274 
3 Unit Rate Smoothing $3,530 
4 Rate Model Input Revisions and 

Feature Changes 
$4,310 

Total  $17,914
 

Page 37 of 97



Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy
  
Officers
Paul R. Eldredge, PE
General Manager/ 
District Engineer
  
David M. O’Hara
Attorney

DATE: April 6, 2015

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer
Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services
Rollie Arbolante, Customer Service Team Coach

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 13, Meeting of April 13, 2015
Resolution No. _____, Make Responsible Agency Findings 
Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act for the City of 
Newark Dumbarton Transit-Oriented Development Specific Plan 
Area, and Approve the Abandonment of the Force Mains Within the 
Wetlands Parcel for the Development

Recommendation

Adopt a resolution making responsible agency findings pursuant to the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) for the City of Newark Dumbarton Transit-Oriented 
Development Specific Plan Area and approving the abandonment of the District’s force 
mains within the wetlands parcel for the development.

Background

In September 2011, the City of Newark approved the Dumbarton Transit-Oriented
Development Specific Plan, which included the construction of up to 2,500 residential 
units, a neighborhood retail center, future transit station, and the necessary 
infrastructure to support these uses.  A site map of the development is attached.  The 
District owns and operates twin 33-inch diameter reinforced concrete force mains that 
convey wastewater flows from the Irvington Pump Station to the Alvarado Treatment 
Plant in Union City.  The force mains traverse the development from south to north 
where it crosses an Alameda County Flood Control channel, then within an easement 
on a proposed wetlands parcel and within the Hickory Street right-of-way; then within an 
easement over two private properties; and finally crossing the City and County of San 

Page 38 of 97



Agenda Item No. 13
Meeting of April 13, 2015
Page 2 

Francisco (CCSF) right-of-way and the San Mateo County Transit right-of-way and 
connecting to the Newark Pump Station.  William Lyon Homes (WLH) is the developer 
proposing to begin construction of 553 residential units for a portion of the development 
known as the Torian property.  See the attached location map.

Part of the Torian property development involves the creation of a wetland preserve at 
the southwestern corner of the property in order to partially mitigate wetlands fill over 
areas of the Torian property.  As shown on the location map, a portion of the USD force 
main runs beneath the proposed Wetland Reserve.  As part of William Lyon Home’s 
permitting for the Torian Project, the Regional Water Quality Control Board’s 401 permit 
condition requires the developer to obtain authorization from the District Board that 
commits USD to allowing the force mains located beneath the Wetland Reserve to be
abandoned in place with no ground disturbance within the Wetland Reserve.  
  
William Lyon Homes has requested that the District agree to the relocation of the 
District’s force mains beginning south of the Specific Plan area boundary, in Perrin 
Road near Willow Street concurrently with the development of Tract 8085.  As shown 
on the location map, the new sewer force main pipe would cross the Alameda County
Flood Control District (“ACFCD”) F1 channel near Willow St., through Tract 8085, then 
within the existing Hickory Street right of way and within the existing District easement 
in the Integral Communities property and FMC properties.  The new pipeline would 
continue north of the Specific Plan area through the CCSF right of way and San Mateo 
County Transit property to the existing Newark Pump Station.

District staff required WLH to submit a feasibility report to investigate the impacts of the 
development on the existing force mains.  Some of major concerns investigated and 
addressed in the report included:

Impacts from the proposed development and the construction of Hickory Street
The feasibility of protecting the existing forcemains in place
Evaluating force main relocation alternatives
Force main operational constraints, including transferring of flows from the 
existing force mains to new force mains
Maintenance impacts from shorter pipe radius bends

The feasibility report was extensively reviewed and a presentation was held at a special 
Board workshop on March 9, 2015.  The conceptual relocation alignment has been 
agreed to by staff and WLH pending final design drawings, execution of a detailed 
encroachment agreement, and successful construction of the force main relocation.  
The agreement will provide for several important details such as: 

Design consultant cost responsibility (WLH)
Contractor selection and cost responsibility (USD selection; WLH cost)

Page 39 of 97



Agenda Item No. 13
Meeting of April 13, 2015
Page 3 

Construction Management cost responsibility (WLH)
 Extended warranty for construction

A construction work plan detailing protection of the existing force mains during 
construction
Liability for all costs to repair any damage to the force mains as a result of 
construction operations (WLH)
Comprehensive general liability insurance from any claims that may arise during 
construction
Indemnification holding USD harmless for any and all liabilities arising from the 
construction of the force mains

Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act, (CEQA), as lead agency, the City 
of Newark certified the Dumbarton Transit-Oriented Development Specific Plan 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) on September 8, 2011, and subsequently, 
approved an addendum to the Specific Plan EIR on February 28, 2013.  Staff has 
determined that the Specific Plan EIR is adequate, complies with the mandates of 
CEQA and the CEQA Guidelines, and fully discloses and analyzes the environmental 
effects of the Dumbarton Transit-Oriented Development project.  The EIR anticipated 
that the mains within the Hickory Street right of way may be replaced and that 
improvements to the main within Willow Street might also occur, and included mitigation 
measures.  The Specific Plan EIR assumed complete disturbance of the parcels within 
the Specific Plan under which the force main relocation would occur.  The force main 
relocation would not disturb the Alameda County Flood Control District (ACFCD) F-1
channel because probable construction methods would not require any ground 
disturbance within the ACFCD right of way.  The construction of the force main 
relocation project would occur concurrently with construction of the Torian property.   
Therefore, the relocation of the force mains, including the portions located adjacent to 
the Specific Plan Area, is not anticipated to create any new significant environmental 
impacts or substantially worsen or increase the severity of impacts already identified.  
Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15091 and 15096 and CEQA, the District is a 
responsible agency and must make certain findings prior to project approval.

By adopting the proposed resolution, the District would commit itself to satisfying the 
Regional Water Quality Control Board condition on William Lyon Homes of abandoning 
the force mains in place in the Wetland Reserve with no ground disturbance in the 
Wetland Reserve.

Staff recommends the Board adopt the attached resolution making responsible agency 
findings pursuant to CEQA for the City of Newark Dumbarton Transit-Oriented 
Development Specific Plan Area, and approve the abandoning of the force mains within 

Page 40 of 97



Agenda Item No. 13
Meeting of April 13, 2015
Page 4 

the wetlands parcel for the development subject to the review and approval of final 
construction drawings and execution of an encroachment agreement for the relocation 
of the force mains, and the successful construction of said relocated force mains.

PRE/SEG/RA:ks 

Attachments: Resolution  
Location Map
Dumbarton TOD Site Map

Page 41 of 97



RESOLUTION NO._____

A RESOLUTION MAKING RESPONSIBLE AGENCY FINDINGS 
PURSUANT TO THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT 

FOR THE CITY OF NEWARK DUMBARTON TRANSIT-ORIENTED 
DEVELOPMENT SPECIFIC PLAN AREA, AND  

APPROVING THE ABANDONMENT OF THE FORCE MAINS WITHIN 
THE WETLANDS PARCEL FOR THE DEVELOPMENT

WHEREAS, The City of Newark (the “City”) is the lead agency pursuant to the 
California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) (Pub. Resources Code, § 21000 et seq.) 
and the CEQA Guidelines (14 Cal. Code Regs., § 15000 et seq.); and  

WHEREAS, The City certified the Dumbarton Transit-Oriented Development 
Specific Plan Environmental Impact Report (State Clearinghouse Number 2010042012) 
(“Specific Plan EIR”), adopted a statement of overriding considerations for the 
significant and unavoidable impacts identified therein, and approved a mitigation 
monitoring and reporting program on September 8, 2011; and

WHEREAS, The Specific Plan EIR analyzed the impacts of development that will 
occur on many different parcels owned by various entities within the 205-acre Specific 
Plan area, including the Torian parcels at issue for the project; the EIR analyzed the 
impacts of the construction and operation of 583 residential units on the Torian parcels; 
and

WHEREAS, The District owns and operates twin 33-inch reinforced concrete 
pipe force mains that are designed to convey Peak Wet Weather Flows of 15.6 Million 
Gallons per Day from the Irvington Pump Station to the District’s treatment plant in 
Union City.  The District force mains traverse the City of Newark’s Dumbarton Transit-
Oriented Development Specific Plan area from south to north within existing easements 
and right of ways; and

WHEREAS, relying on the Specific Plan EIR, on November 29, 2012, the City 
approved Tentative Tract Map 8085 for a 553 residential unit development on the Torian 
parcels (the “Torian Project”).  On February 28, 2013 the City approved an addendum to 
the Specific Plan EIR to analyze minor revisions to the Torian Project, which included a
contemplated wetland connection through, and the abandonment of, Hickory Street and 
a total of 547 units, and other minor site plan revisions (“Addendum”); and

WHEREAS, as part of the Torian Project, a wetland preserve will be created and 
managed in perpetuity for the benefit of the ecological and habitat values of the area 
(the “Wetland Reserve”).  As shown on Location Map, which is incorporated herein by 
reference, a portion of the USD force main runs beneath the Wetland Reserve.  As a 
condition of the development under the Regional Water Quality Control Board (Water 
Board) 401 permit, the Water Board has required the developer to submit authorization 
by the Union Sanitary District Board to allow portions of the USD force mains running

Page 1 of 3 Page 42 of 97



beneath the Wetland Reserve to be abandoned in place (RWQCB Site No. 02-01-
C1123(BKW)).  By passing this resolution, the District intends to commit itself to 
satisfying this condition; and

WHEREAS, William Lyon Homes has requested, consistent with RWQCB Site 
No. 02-01-C1123(BKW), that the District abandon in place the existing force mains and 
replace them with new force mains beginning south of the Specific Plan area boundary, 
in Perrin Road near Willow Street.  The new sewer force main pipe would go under the 
Alameda County Flood Control District (“ACFCD”) F1 Channel, through Tract 8085, 
then within the existing Hickory Street right of way and within the existing District 
easement in the Integral Communities property and FMC properties.  The new pipeline 
would continue north of the Specific Plan area through the Hetch Hetchy right of ways 
and San Mateo County Transit property to the existing Newark Pump Station; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Sections 15091 and 15096 and 
CEQA, the District is a responsible agency and must therefore make certain findings 
prior to approval of the abandonment. All of the procedures of CEQA and the CEQA 
Guidelines have been met, and the Specific Plan EIR as modified by the Addendum 
(together, “Specific Plan EIR”) is sufficiently detailed so that all the potentially significant 
effects of the project on the environment and measures necessary to avoid or
substantially lessen such effects have been evaluated in accordance with the CEQA 
and the CEQA Guidelines.  All of the findings and conclusions made by the Board
pursuant to this Resolution are based upon the oral and written evidence presented to it 
as a whole and not based solely on the information provided in this Resolution; and
prior to taking action has reviewed and considered the administrative record. All other 
legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Resolution have occurred.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS:

 That the Board, acting as a responsible agency under CEQA, has considered the 
EIR as prepared by the City of Newark as lead agency and has determined that 
the Specific Plan EIR is adequate, complies with the mandates of CEQA and the 
CEQA Guidelines, and fully discloses and analyzes the environmental effects of 
the Dumbarton Transit-Oriented Development project ; and

 That the General Manager is directed to file a Notice of Determination as 
provided in Sections 15094 and 15096(i) of the State CEQA Guidelines; and

 That the District approves the abandonment of the force mains within the 
wetlands parcel, subject to the review and approval of final construction drawings
and agreement for the relocation of the force mains, and the successful 
construction of said relocated force mains.

Page 2 of 3 Page 43 of 97



On motion duly made and seconded, this resolution was adopted by the following 
vote on April 13, 2015:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

                      
       MANNY FERNANDEZ
       President, Board of Directors
       Union Sanitary District

Attest: 

      
TOM HANDLEY
Secretary, Board of Directors
Union Sanitary District

Page 3 of 3 Page 44 of 97



W
E

TL
A

N
D

S
P

A
R

C
E

L

Page 45 of 97



5
Du

m
ba

rt
on

 T
O

D 
Sp

ec
i 

c 
Pl

an
ity

 o
f 

ew
ar

k 
 |

  
ah

lin
 

ro
up

 
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

e 
la

nn
in

g
ity

 o
f 

ew
ar

k 
 |

  
ah

lin
 

ro
up

 
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

e 
la

nn
in

g

Ch
ap

te
r 1

nt
ro

du
c

 o
n

A
bo

ve
: F

ig
ur

e 
1.

2:
  L

oc
al

 C
on

te
xt

 w
it

h 
si

te
 s

ho
w

n 
ou

tl
in

ed
 in

 r
ed

; M
ap

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 G
oo

gl
e

Si
te

P
ag

e 
46

 o
f 9

7



P
ag

e 
47

 o
f 9

7



P
ag

e 
48

 o
f 9

7



P
ag

e 
49

 o
f 9

7



P
ag

e 
50

 o
f 9

7



P
ag

e 
51

 o
f 9

7



P
ag

e 
52

 o
f 9

7



P
ag

e 
53

 o
f 9

7



P
ag

e 
54

 o
f 9

7



P
ag

e 
55

 o
f 9

7



P
ag

e 
56

 o
f 9

7



P
ag

e 
57

 o
f 9

7



P
ag

e 
58

 o
f 9

7



P
ag

e 
59

 o
f 9

7



P
ag

e 
60

 o
f 9

7



P
ag

e 
61

 o
f 9

7



Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy
  
Officers
Paul R. Eldredge, PE
General Manager/ 
District Engineer
  
David M. O’Hara
Attorney

DATE: April 7, 2015

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer
Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services
Raymond Chau, CIP Coach

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 14b - Meeting of April 13, 2015
Information Item: Cogeneration Project Construction Contract 
Change Order Summary

Recommendation

This is an information item.

Background

The Board awarded the construction contract for the Project to D. W. Nicholson 
Corporation (DWN) in the amount of $10,566,358 on March 11, 2013.  Staff issued the 
Notice to Proceed to DWN on April 5, 2013.  The Project's original construction period 
was five hundred twenty-five (525) calendar days with a commissioning of the new 
engine generators by June 13, 2014 (Milestone A) to meet PG&E’s Self-Generation 
Incentive Program (SGIP) deadline and completion of all Project elements by 
September 11, 2014. 

Due to delays resulting from several contract change orders (CCOs), staff executed 
CCO No. 67 that extended the Milestone A and project completion dates to     
November 17, 2014 and February 2, 2015, respectively. Staff issued Project 
Substantial Completion and the punch list of outstanding contract work items to DWN 
on March 4, 2015. All field work is expected to be completed by early May 2015.

Carollo Engineers designed the Project and The Covello Group provided construction 
management services.

Page 62 of 97



Agenda Item No. 14b
Meeting of April 13, 2015
Page 2 

CCO Summary

As of April 7, 2015, staff has executed ninety-seven (97) CCOs in the amount of 
$1,113,617, which is 10.5% of the original construction contract amount.  Below is a 
summary of the significant executed CCOs:

1. CCO No. 10, Modifications to Medium Voltage Switchgear MVSA

Change Order No. 10 is in the amount of $175,919 and is for incorporating 
modifications to the Plant main switchgear.  PG&E required the District to install 
protective devices on the plant’s 12,000-volt electrical switchgear to monitor the 
power from the biogas-fired engine generators and to prevent the export of 
power to PG&E’s grid.  PG&E’s requirements were not known during the design 
phase, so the new protective devices for the main utility breaker were not 
included in the electrical switchgear plans and specifications.  The CCO included 
a new standalone enclosure with the new protective devices and switches, 
terminations of wires within the switchgear, current-measuring devices in the 
switchgear, testing of the new devices in conjunction with the existing main utility 
breaker, and DWN’s supplier’s engineering services. This CCO was approved 
by the Board of Directors during the Board meeting of October 14, 2013.

2. CCO No. 27, High Temperature Jacket Water Pump and Decoupling Heat 
Exchanger

Change Order No. 27 is in the amount of $98,500 and is for the extra work 
pertaining to the high temperature jacket water pump and decoupling heat 
exchanger.  The initial cogeneration equipment submittal had initially shown the 
mentioned equipment to be mounted on each of the two engine generator skids.  
However, the supplier’s cogeneration equipment final submittal showed an
additional decoupling heat exchanger, and associated pumps and valves, on 
each engine unit, all being provided at no additional charge.  The additional 
equipment was a highly recommended requirement of the engine manufacturer 
to extend the life of the engine coolant and reduce engine maintenance and 
associated downtime and costs.  This required the Design Engineer, Carollo, to 
modify the equipment layout within the Cogeneration Building, which resulted in a 
CCO to install the equipment and to modify the mechanical, electrical, and 
instrumentation installation within the building.

3. CCO No. 28, Engine Generator catalyst

Change Order No. 28 is in the amount of $249,367 and is for the extra work 
associated with incorporating an oxidation catalyst system to the engines’ 
exhaust piping. The District submitted the air permit application in October 2012

Page 63 of 97



Agenda Item No. 14b
Meeting of April 13, 2015
Page 3 

to the Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD), which was during 
the design phase of the Project.  The permit application proposed emission limits 
of 1.0 gram per brake horsepower-hour (g/bhp-hr) of carbon dioxide (CO) and 
2.65 g/bhp-hr of nitrogen oxide (NOx) in accordance with published BAAQMD 
Best Available Control Technology (BACT) guidelines and regulatory limits at the 
time.  The manufacturer of the engine generators could guarantee these 
emission limits without any emission controls.

After award of the construction contract, the BAAQMD responded in April 2013 to 
the District’s application and proposed permit conditions that set a lower CO limit 
of 2.1 g/bhp-hr but left the NOx limit at 1.0 g/bhp-hr. To meet the lower CO limit, 
the District needed to install oxidation catalysts on each engine’s exhaust piping.

This CCO included oxidation catalysts and housing; catalyst monitor and 
differential pressure transmitter; stainless steel exhaust piping, expansion joints, 
and supports; and electrical conduits and wiring. This CCO was approved by the 
Board of Directors during the Board meeting of January 27, 2014.

4. CCO No. 57, Delete DGCS Warranty

Change Order No. 57 is in the credit amount of $186,791 and is for deleting the
warranty for the digester gas conditioning system (DGCS) equipment. The SGIP
required all of the major components of the cogeneration system carry a 
minimum ten-year equipment warranty.  The warranty would cover the full cost of 
repair or replacement of defective components or systems, including coverage 
for labor costs to remove and reinstall defective components or systems.  The 
SGIP required system owners to fulfill the warranty requirements by acquiring 
standard and extended warranties from the equipment manufacturers or 
suppliers.

During design, the District applied for and received PG&E’s approval to “self-
perform” the warranty for the engine generator system.  However, the 
construction contract still included the ten-year warranty for the digester gas 
conditioning system.  During the construction phase, staff discovered that the 
cost of the ten-year warranty for the DGCS equipment was significant.  In 
October 2014, the District applied for and received PG&E’s approval to “self-
perform” the warranty of the DGCS equipment. This CCO also deleted a five-
year maintenance bond that insured the equipment supplier’s performance. This 
CCO was approved by the Board of Directors during the Board meeting of 
November 24, 2014.

Page 64 of 97



Agenda Item No. 14b
Meeting of April 13, 2015
Page 4 

5. CCO No. 93, Electrical Modifications for Final Engine System Components

Change Order No. 93 is in the amount of $77,000 and is for incorporating 
electrical conduit and wire modifications to accommodate actual devices 
provided by the engine generator supplier.  After reviewing the submittal from the 
engine generator supplier, Carollo discovered additional temperature elements, 
pressure switches, vibration switches, and digester and natural gas anti-backfire 
devices that were not included in the construction contract documents.  During 
design, Carollo worked with the supplier to show the anticipated instrumentation 
and control equipment in the contract documents.  However, during the submittal 
preparation phase, the supplier “designed” the system based on the technical 
requirements of the Project.  This CCO included installation of new conduits and 
wiring to these devices between the control room and the field devices in and 
around the Cogeneration Building.

PCO Summary

In addition to the ninety-three (93) executed CCO’s, there are twenty-one (21) potential 
change orders (PCOs) that Covello and staff are currently reviewing.  The total amount 
requested by DWN in the remaining PCOs is $363,375, which represents an additional 
3.4% of the original construction contract amount. Staff anticipates the negotiations of 
the remaining PCOs to conclude within the next month, and the final CCO rate to 
remain less than 15%.

PRE/SEG/RC:ks  

Page 65 of 97



Directors
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Officers
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 

David M. O’Hara 
Attorney 

DATE: April 6, 2015 

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Sami E. Ghossain, Technical Services Manager 
 Michael Dunning, Environmental Compliance Coach 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 14.c - Meeting of April 13, 2015 
Information Item: Earth Day 2015

Recommendation

Information only 

Background 

On Saturday, April 25, 2015, the Environmental Compliance team will participate in the 
Earth Day event that the City of Fremont and Washington Hospital are hosting.  The 
event will be held at Washington Hospital’s Conrad E. Anderson, M.D. Auditorium, at 
2500 Mowry Ave, Fremont from 11:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m.

Environmental Compliance staff will share information with the public related to Pollution 
Prevention, including the use of less toxic products at home, reducing discharge of 
grease to the sewers, and proper disposal of mercury-containing devices and unused 
medications.

Grease scrapers and various handouts related to the reduction of Fats, Oil, and Grease, 
Integrated Pest Management, and Green Business will be made available to the public 
at the event.  For children, staff will hand out workbooks related to the sanitary sewers 

Page 66 of 97



Agenda Item No. 14.c 
Meeting of April 13, 2015 
Page 2 

and rulers. Additionally, reusable tote bags and Pollution Prevention Pledge magnets 
will be given to residents who sign our Pollution Prevention Pledge.  

The District will be placing an ad in the Tri-City Voice announcing the City of Fremont 
and Washington Hospital’s Earth Day celebration. The ad will appear in the April 21st

issue.

PRE/SEG/MD:av

Attachments:
USD’s Earth Day Advertisement 
City of Fremont and Washington Hospital’s Earth Day Advertisement 
Pollution Prevention Pledge Magnet  

Page 67 of 97



Protect Your Bay 
On Earth Day 

Visit Union Sanitary District’s Booth  
At Fremont’s Earth Day Celebration 

SSaturday, April 25 – 11 a.m. to 3 p.m. 
Washington Hospital – Washington West 

2500 Mowry Avenue 

Protecting The Tri-Cities and San Francisco Bay 

FREE Safe Medicine Disposal 

FREE Thermometer Exchange 

For more information, call USD at (510) 477-7620 

Empty pills into one resealable bag and bring to our 
booth – recycle the containers at home. Bring liquids 
and lotions in original containers with personal info 
blacked out or removed. 

USD will trade your mercury thermometer for a non-
hazardous version at no charge. We will also recycle 
other mercury-containing devices for you. 

StopFOG With A FREE Grease Scraper! 
Learn how to prevent expensive repairs and protect the 
environment by keeping Fats, Oil and Grease  (FOG) out 
of your sewer. 

Page 68 of 97



Fun for 
the kids!

Kids activities will include: 

> Bike Rodeo
> Eco-tainment

*Youth bike raffle requires participation in the bike rodeo. Restrictions 
apply.

> Face painting

> Earth Day art

> Other free games and activities

> Kids bike raffle*

Join us as we celebrate Earth Day! 
Meet with eco-friendly experts and learn new ways to go green!

Planet Friendly 
Healthcare

i l b hhhh

Let’s 
 

Together!

> Syringes and needles  
(in approved containers)

> Confidential document  
shredding

> Disposal of unused,  
unwanted medications

> Donate eyeglasses

> Mercury thermometer 
exchange

> Recycling and waste 
reduction

> Saving energy at home

> Eco-friendly gardening 
and composting

> Local sustainability 
programs

> Healthy eating/
Farmer’s Market

> Torchiere lamp exchange (must bring 
PG&E bill to qualify)

> Food trucks
> Free bike tune-ups (11 a.m. to 2 p.m.)

> Fix-a-flat workshop at 1:15 p.m.
> Blender bike (to make smoothies)
> Residential energy resources for Fremont’s 

$5M Energy Challenge!

Page 69 of 97



Page 70 of 97



Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Paul R. Eldredge
General Manager/
District Engineer

David M. O’Hara
Attorney

DATE: April 7, 2015

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 14d - Meeting of April 13, 2015
Information Item: Discuss topics for the General Manager Check-in 
Workshop scheduled for April 30, 2015

Recommendation

None.  Information only.

Background

Per the direction of the December 15, 2014 Board mini-retreat, a Board of Directors 
check-in with the General Manager has been scheduled for Thursday, April 30, 2015, at 
USD Offices at 6:30 p.m. The retreat will be conducted in workshop format and will be 
an open session.  Staff has identified the following potential topics for discussion:

Goals for FY 2016
Schedule and Process for Annual Performance Evaluation

Staff requests the Board identify any additional topics of interest to be included in the 
check-in.  Staff will then develop a formal agenda.

Page 71 of 97



Page 72 of 97



Page 73 of 97



Page 74 of 97



Page 75 of 97



Page 76 of 97



Page 77 of 97



Page 78 of 97



Page 79 of 97



Page 80 of 97



Page 81 of 97



Page 82 of 97



Page 83 of 97



Page 84 of 97



Page 85 of 97



Page 86 of 97



Page 87 of 97



Page 88 of 97



Page 89 of 97



Page 90 of 97



Page 91 of 97



Page 92 of 97



Page 93 of 97



Page 94 of 97



Page 95 of 97



Page 96 of 97



Page 97 of 97



Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Paul R. Eldredge, PE
General Manager/ 
District Engineer

David M. O’Hara
Attorney

DATE: April 6, 2015

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer
Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services
Rollie R. Arbolante, Customer Service Team Coach
Al D. Bunyi, Associate Engineer 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 9 - Meeting of April 13, 2015
Award the Construction Contract for the Newark Backyard Sanitary 
Sewer Relocation Project – Phase 2 to Ranger Pipelines, Inc.

Recommendation

Award the construction contract for the Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer Relocation 
Project – Phase 2 to Ranger Pipelines, Inc. in the amount of $2,085,270. Funds for the 
Project have been budgeted in the Renewal and Replacement Fund.

Background

The purpose of the Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer Replacement Project is to 
improve the existing gravity sewer system within the residential neighborhood located 
northerly of the intersection of Dairy Avenue and Cherry Street in the City of Newark.  
The existing sewers are only 6 inches in diameter, have very flat slopes, and require 
frequent maintenance.  The sewers are also located in backyard easements and are 
very difficult to access for maintenance and inspection.  The goal of the project is to 
relocate the existing backyard sewer mains and laterals to the public streets fronting the 
homes.  

The Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer Relocation Project Phase 2 is the second phase 
of the three-phase project to relocate the sanitary sewer mains in the Flat Tops area.  In 
Phase 1, 33 sewer laterals were relocated to the Dairy Avenue and Cherry Street.
Phase 2 includes the relocation of 93 sanitary sewer laterals to new sanitary sewer 

Desk Item
Item No. 9

4/13/15
Board Meeting



Agenda Item No. 9
Meeting of April 13, 2015
Page 2

mains that will be constructed within George Avenue, Jennifer Street, Deborah Street, 
Leone Street and parts of Zulmida Avenue and Noel Avenue.  A vicinity map showing 
the project area is attached.  

Scope of Work

The Project consists of the following major work items: 

• Construction of approximately 3,755 linear feet of 8-inch diameter sanitary 
sewer by open-cut method.

• Installation of 4-inch diameter sanitary sewer laterals, primarily by horizontal 
directional drilling (HDD) for 93 residences.

• Connection of existing concrete encased front yard sanitary sewer laterals to 
new sanitary sewer mains for 10 residences.

• Removal of approximately 475 linear feet of existing 6-inch diameter sanitary 
sewer.

• Abandonment of approximately 3,535 linear feet of existing 6-inch diameter 
sanitary sewer. 

• Construction of 12 standard sanitary sewer manholes.
• Removal of 11 sanitary sewer manholes/risers and abandonment of 8 

sanitary sewer manholes/risers in place.

Bid Results

The project was advertised for bids on March 3, 2015 and then again on March 10,
2015. Two bids were received and opened on March 31, 2015 with the total bid 
amounts shown as follows:

Contractor Total Base Bid Amount
Ranger Pipelines, Inc. $2,085,270.00
K.J. Woods Construction, Inc. $2,088,000.00

The engineer's estimate for the Project was $2,574,000.  A bid tabulation sheet is 
attached.

Seven prospective bidders attended the mandatory pre-bid meeting on March 19, 2015, 
yet only two bids were received.  One contractor couldn’t meet the horizontal directional 
drilling (HDD) experience qualification required.  Another contractor felt their bid would 
not be competitive.  Other contractors did not submit bids due to conflicts with their own 
construction schedules.  

Desk Item
Item No. 9

4/13/15
Board Meeting



Agenda Item No. 9
Meeting of April 13, 2015
Page 3

Ranger Pipelines, Inc. Bid

Ranger Pipelines, Inc. submitted the apparent low bid of $2,085,270 that is
approximately 9.019.0% below the Engineer’s Estimate of $2,574,000.  Ranger 
Pipeline’s bid is only $2,730 more than the bid submitted by the second bidder, K.J. 
Woods Construction.  District staff reviewed the bid documents submitted by Ranger 
Pipelines, Inc. and found them to be in order.  Ranger Pipelines, Inc.’s contractor 
license is current and active.  Ranger Pipelines, Inc. has completed multiple capital 
improvement projects in other public agencies and for the District over the past several 
years.  The most recent project completed for the District was the Newark Backyard 
Sanitary Sewer Relocation Project - Phase 1.  The project was completed within the 
contract time allowed with minimal change orders totaling 0.5% of the construction 
contract amount.  Staff was satisfied with their work performance for the project.

Construction

The contractor has 150 consecutive calendar days to complete the project from Notice 
to Proceed, which puts the estimated substantial completion date in late September 
2015. Project design was completed by West Yost Associates in March 2015. Full time 
construction management and inspection will be provided from an outside consultant
yet to be selected.

Ranger Pipelines has verified and confirmed the bid with staff and there has been no 
bid protest received from the other bidder. Staff recommends that the Board award the
construction contract for the Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer Replacement Project –
Phase 2 to Ranger Pipelines, Inc. in the amount of $2,085,270.

PRE/SEG/RRA/ADB:ks

Attachments: Vicinity Map
Bid Tab Sheet

Desk Item
Item No. 9

4/13/15
Board Meeting



Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Paul R. Eldredge, PE
General Manager/ 
District Engineer

David M. O’Hara
Attorney

DATE: April 7, 2015

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer
Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services
Raymond Chau, CIP Coach

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 14b - Meeting of April 13, 2015
Information Item: Cogeneration Project Construction Contract 
Change Order Summary

Recommendation

This is an information item.

Background

The Board awarded the construction contract for the Project to D. W. Nicholson 
Corporation (DWN) in the amount of $10,566,358 on March 11, 2013.  Staff issued the 
Notice to Proceed to DWN on April 5, 2013.  The Project's original construction period 
was five hundred twenty-five (525) calendar days with a commissioning of the new 
engine generators by June 13, 2014 (Milestone A) to meet PG&E’s Self-Generation 
Incentive Program (SGIP) deadline and completion of all Project elements by 
September 11, 2014.

Due to delays resulting from several contract change orders (CCOs), staff executed 
CCO No. 67 that extended the Milestone A and project completion dates to     
November 17, 2014 and February 2, 2015, respectively. Staff issued Project 
Substantial Completion and the punch list of outstanding contract work items to DWN 
on March 4, 2015. All field work is expected to be completed by early May 2015.

Carollo Engineers designed the Project and The Covello Group provided construction 
management services.

Desk Item
Item No. 14.b

4/13/15
Board Meeting



Agenda Item No. 14b
Meeting of April 13, 2015
Page 2

CCO Summary

As of April 7, 2015, staff has executed ninety-seven (97) CCOs in the amount of 
$1,113,617, which is 10.5% of the original construction contract amount.  Below is a 
summary of the significant executed CCOs:

1. CCO No. 10, Modifications to Medium Voltage Switchgear MVSA

Change Order No. 10 is in the amount of $175,919 and is for incorporating 
modifications to the Plant main switchgear.  PG&E required the District to install 
protective devices on the plant’s 12,000-volt electrical switchgear to monitor the 
power from the biogas-fired engine generators and to prevent the export of 
power to PG&E’s grid.  PG&E’s requirements were not known during the design 
phase, so the new protective devices for the main utility breaker were not 
included in the electrical switchgear plans and specifications.  The CCO included 
a new standalone enclosure with the new protective devices and switches, 
terminations of wires within the switchgear, current-measuring devices in the 
switchgear, testing of the new devices in conjunction with the existing main utility 
breaker, and DWN’s supplier’s engineering services. This CCO was approved 
by the Board of Directors during the Board meeting of October 14, 2013.

2. CCO No. 27, High Temperature Jacket Water Pump and Decoupling Heat 
Exchanger

Change Order No. 27 is in the amount of $98,500 and is for the extra work 
pertaining to the high temperature jacket water pump and decoupling heat 
exchanger. The initial cogeneration equipment submittal had initially shown the 
mentioned equipment to be mounted on each of the two engine generator skids.  
However, the supplier’s cogeneration equipment final submittal showed an
additional decoupling heat exchanger, and associated pumps and valves, on 
each engine unit, all being provided at no additional charge.  The additional 
equipment was a highly recommended requirement of the engine manufacturer 
to extend the life of the engine coolant and reduce engine maintenance and 
associated downtime and costs.  This required the Design Engineer, Carollo, to 
modify the equipment layout within the Cogeneration Building, which resulted in a 
CCO to install the equipment and to modify the mechanical, electrical, and 
instrumentation installation within the building.

Desk Item
Item No. 14.b

4/13/15
Board Meeting



Agenda Item No. 14b
Meeting of April 13, 2015
Page 3

3. CCO No. 28, Engine Generator catalyst

Change Order No. 28 is in the amount of $249,367 and is for the extra work 
associated with incorporating an oxidation catalyst system to the engines’ 
exhaust piping. The District submitted the air permit application in October 2012
to the Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD), which was during 
the design phase of the Project.  The permit application proposed emission limits 
of 1.0 gram per brake horsepower-hour (g/bhp-hr) of carbon dioxide (CO) and 
2.65 g/bhp-hr of nitrogen oxide (NOx) in accordance with published BAAQMD 
Best Available Control Technology (BACT) guidelines and regulatory limits at the 
time.  The manufacturer of the engine generators could guarantee these 
emission limits without any emission controls.

After award of the construction contract, the BAAQMD responded in April 2013 to 
the District’s application and proposed permit conditions that set a lower CO limit 
of 2.1 g/bhp-hr but left the NOx limit at 1.0 g/bhp-hr. To meet the lower CO limit, 
the District needed to install oxidation catalysts on each engine’s exhaust piping.

This CCO included oxidation catalysts and housing; catalyst monitor and 
differential pressure transmitter; stainless steel exhaust piping, expansion joints, 
and supports; and electrical conduits and wiring. This CCO was approved by the 
Board of Directors during the Board meeting of January 27, 2014.

4. CCO No. 57, Delete DGCS Warranty

Change Order No. 57 is in the credit amount of $186,791 and is for deleting the
warranty for the digester gas conditioning system (DGCS) equipment. The SGIP
required all of the major components of the cogeneration system carry a 
minimum ten-year equipment warranty.  The warranty would cover the full cost of 
repair or replacement of defective components or systems, including coverage 
for labor costs to remove and reinstall defective components or systems.  The 
SGIP required system owners to fulfill the warranty requirements by acquiring 
standard and extended warranties from the equipment manufacturers or 
suppliers.

During design, the District applied for and received PG&E’s approval to “self-
perform” the warranty for the engine generator system.  However, the 
construction contract still included the ten-year warranty for the digester gas 
conditioning system.  During the construction phase, staff discovered that the 
cost of the ten-year warranty for the DGCS equipment was significant.  In 
October 2014, the District applied for and received PG&E’s approval to “self-
perform” the warranty of the DGCS equipment. This CCO also deleted a five-

Desk Item
Item No. 14.b

4/13/15
Board Meeting



Agenda Item No. 14b
Meeting of April 13, 2015
Page 4

year maintenance bond that insured the equipment supplier’s performance. This 
CCO was approved by the Board of Directors during the Board meeting of 
November 24, 2014.

5. CCO No. 93, Electrical Modifications for Final Engine System Components

Change Order No. 93 is in the amount of $77,000 and is for incorporating 
electrical conduit and wire modifications to accommodate actual devices 
provided by the engine generator supplier.  After reviewing the submittal from the 
engine generator supplier, Carollo discovered additional temperature elements, 
pressure switches, vibration switches, and digester and natural gas anti-backfire 
devices that were not included in the construction contract documents.  During 
design, Carollo worked with the supplier to show the anticipated instrumentation 
and control equipment in the contract documents.  However, during the submittal 
preparation phase, the supplier “designed” the system based on the technical 
requirements of the Project.  This CCO included installation of new conduits and 
wiring to these devices between the control room and the field devices in and 
around the Cogeneration Building.

PCO Summary

In addition to the ninety-three (93)ninety-seven (97) executed CCO’s, there are twenty-
one (21) potential change orders (PCOs) that Covello and staff are currently reviewing.  
The total amount requested by DWN in the remaining PCOs is $363,375, which 
represents an additional 3.4% of the original construction contract amount. Staff 
anticipates the negotiations of the remaining PCOs to conclude within the next month,
and the final CCO rate to remain less than 15%.

PRE/SEG/RC:ks

Desk Item
Item No. 14.b

4/13/15
Board Meeting


